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May 15,2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Slate House

Concord, New Hampshire 0330!

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into a RETROACTIVE
amendment to an existing SOLE SOURCE contract with Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. (VC#177195), Berlin, NH, for the Low-Income Household Water Assistance Program, by
extending the completion date from March 31,2024 to June 30,2024, changing the amount of the
program from $576,125 to $448,051.36, and changing the scope to authorize onetime supplemental
payments of $742 to eligible customers that applied for the program by March 31,2024 totaling
$203,308 within the updated price limitation of $448,051.36, effective upon Governor and Executive
Council approval.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Executive Council on September 21,2022, Item
#65, and amended on September 20,2023, Item #5F. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding is available in the following accounts:

Fiscal

Year

Account/Class Class Title Current

Budget
Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 02-52-52-520010-

24520000-074-500587

Grants for Pub

Assist & Relief

$253,692.00 ($179,144.04) $74,547.96

2023 02-52-52-520010-

19880000-074-500587

Grants for Pub

Assist & Relief

$322,433.00 ($152,237.60) $170,195.40

2024 02-52-52-520010-

19880000-074-500587

Grants for Pub

Assist & Relief

$0.00 $203,308.00 $203,308.00

Total $576,125.00 ($128,073.64) $448,051.36



His Excellency, Governor Christojrficr T. Sununu
and the Hont^le Council
May 15.202^1
PBge2or2

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action
Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program
(LIHEAP), their outreach and client service capabilities, the synergies that will benefit the Low
Income Home Water Assistance Program (LIHWAP) as a result of the five statewide CAAs'
implementations of several other federal assistance programs, and the infrastructure that is
already in place to deliver LIHWAP services. The Department proposes to continue to
subcontract with the five CAAs who have successfully provided similar services at the local
level for more than three decades. The CAAs work closely with the Department's Fuel
Assistance Program Administrator in the implementation of several low-income programs.

This contract is RETROACTIVE because the Department wanted to ensure the amendments
had accurate numbers to determine the amount of the onetime supplemental and the program did
not close until March 31^' and the US DHHS is allowing the Department to make payments with
the remaining funds until June 30, 2024.

LIHWAP is a statewide program funded by Federal LIHEAP grants, to provide residential water
and sewer arrearage payment services for those making 60% or less of state median income.
Program funds originally were provided for arrearage payoffs to low-income households.

The program ended on March 31, 2024 and the US DHHS has authorized the Department to
reallocate the remaining funds based on number of households to provide a one-time credit to all
households that are eligible and applied for the program by March 3U'. This reallocation is
combined with a decrease in the program's American Rescue Program Act funding by
$722,867.30 by the US DHHS.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

\

Jared Chicoine

Commissioner



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT: LOW-INCOME HOME WATER ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.

AMENDMENT #2

This Amendment dated April 17, 2024, is between the Stale of New Hampshire
Department of Energy, 21 South Fruit Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301
(hereinafter referred to as the "State'*) and Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., 30
Exchange Street, Berlin, Coos County, N H 03570 (hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor").

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement"), as approved by
Governor and Council on September 21, 2022, Item #65, and amended on September 20, 2023,
Item #5F, the Contractor has agreed to provide certain Services, per the tenns and conditions
specified in the Agreement and in consideration of payment by the State of certain sums as
specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement
may be modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and
only after approval of such modification or amendment by the Govemor and Council; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and
conditions in the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

1. Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and
modified as follows:

A) Completion Date: Amend Subparagraph 1.7 of the Agreement by striking
the current completion date of March 31, 2024 and inserting in place
thereof the date of June 30, 2024.

B) Price Limitation: Amend Subparagraph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking
the current Price Limitation of $576,125 and inserting in place thereof
$448,051.36.

C) Exhibit C - Payment Terms:

1. Amend Exhibit C, third paragraph by striking the current contract
date of "upon Govemor and Council approval through March 31,
2024" and inserting in place thereof ̂'upon Govemor and Council
approval through June 30, 2024."

TCCAP Amendmeni Contractur Initials;

Grants: LIHWAP 2101NHLWC5/6 Date:

CFDA: 93.568 Page I af3



2. Amend line one under American Rescue Plan Act by striking
$37,838.00 and insert in place thereof $18,293.00.

3. Amend line two under American Rescue Plan Act by striking
$215,854.00 and insert in place thereof $56,254.96.

4. Amend line two under Consolidated Appropriations Act: by
striking $275,430.00 and insert in place tliercof $326,500.40.

5. Add third line under Consolidated Appropriations Act to read "Of
the $326,500.40, $203,308.00 shall be used to provide a $742
supplemental payment to water/sewer vendors to be applied toward
eligible customers* current bill, with any remaining funds to be
applied as a credit.

D) Exhibit D: Amend period covered by this certification to "upon Governor
and Council approval through June 30,2024."

E) Exhibit E: Amend contract period dates to "upon Governor and Council
approval through June 30,2024."

F) Exhibit B - Scone of Services: Amend Exhibit B to include paragraph 4.
Supplemental payments directly to watcr/sewer vendors to be applied
toward eligible customers' current bill, with any remaining funds to be
applied as credit to assist with rate reduction.

2. Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by
the Terms and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder
shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions

set forth in the Agreement as it existed immediately prior to this Amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first
above written.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Dep^ment of Energy

/Ua^
d S. Chicoine, Commissioner

ounty Community Action Program, Inc.

(Name erson Authorized to Sign)

C0O
^ot^Person Aui

AoVAWo

TCCAP Amcndmenl

Grants; UHWAP 2101NHLWC5/6

CFDA: 93.568

Contractor Initlab

Date; *4
Page2or3



State of UceM/tSW^fg
County of OftO^

On this day of 2024, before me the
undersigned officer, perwnally speared 'RftVi.Wftfd . who acknowledged
himself/herself to be theC^^^6ie^^^lWrt. ofTri-Countv Community Action Program.
Inc., a corporation, and that he/she, being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument
for the purposes contained therein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 hereunto set my hand and officj^seai.

CHRISTINA MORIN
Justice OF THE Peace

State of New Hampshire xr a L £y^ ■
My Commission Expires Nota^fc+MDllC/WJStlCCOf the PeaceJanuary 31,2029 Commission expii^: \ |

Approyed as to form, execution and substance:

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

By:

Date:

Assistant Attorney General

4/18/2024

1 hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the
Slate of New Hampshire at their meeting on , 2024.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

By:

Title:

TCCAP Amendment Cootnictor Initials:

Grams: UHWAP2101NHLWC5/6 Date:
CFDA: 93.568 PogeSofa



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan. Sccreiar)-of Stale of the State of New Hampshire, do hcrcb>' certify that TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on May 18. 1965. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretarj- of Slate's office have

been received and is In good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63020

Certificate Number: 00066S2662

%

Ik

O

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.xed

the Seal olThe State of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretarv- of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

^Sandy Alonzo hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannol be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Board Chair of ^Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The folloy^ Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on . 20 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That _Jeanne Robillard, CEO and or Randall Pilotle, CFO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements
with the State

(Name of CorporatiorV LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further Is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may'in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
posltlon(s) Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation In contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such iimitations are expressly stated herein.hmttations are expressly stated herein. i i .

Dated:
'  ' Signature of Electgp Officer C/

Name: Sandy Alonzo
Title: Board Chair

Rev. 03/24/20



ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

01/03/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certincate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(isa) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If StIBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms artd conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu such endorsement(s).

PROOUCER

Cross Insurance-Manchester

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

NAUe*''* SusenSuUlven
fSre,..,. (603)6690218 (603)64WM1
A^RESS- ^ich.certsQcrossagency.com

INSURERlSlAFFOROerC COVERACe NAICF

INSURER A; Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co 18058

INSURCO

Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc

30 Exchange Street

Berlin NH 03570

irmjftgft a: Qrsnhe Stale Health Care and Human Services Seil-

WSURERC :

WSURERO:

INSURER E;

INSURER F ;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 23-24 Al 23-24 WC REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THS POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REOUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WJTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO AU THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS ANO CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAMS.

INSR
LTD TYKOFaiSURANCC

m»J':kk!'|'i:

POLICY NUMBER
MLlCVeFF

(MMIOOIYYYY)
POLICYEXP

(MM/tX>/YYYYl LOiBTS 1

A

X COMMERCIAL GEKERALLUBLITY

E  1 XI OCCUR

PHPK2571941 07/01/2023 07/01/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE J 1.000,000

CLAJMSMAO
UAUAUb lOHLNtbt)
PRFMISFA 'F • '«'-"<r«wet

S 100.000

MEO EXP (AAV gnt MrMn) S 5.000

PERSONAL « ACV INJURY J 1,000,000

06NL ACOREGaTE LiMff APPLIES PER; GENERALACGAEOatE
s 3.000.000

X POLICY Q Q LOG
OTHER;

PROOUCTS • COhnOPAOG J 3.000.000

i Professional Liabllty $ 1.000.000

A

1 AUT0U0BIL6 LIAeejTY j

PHPK2S71943 07/01/2023 07/01/2024

C0M6INE0 SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea •ccHlAfMt

S 1.000.000

XI ANY AUTO j BODILY INJURY (Ptr e*fMn) s

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HREO
AUTOS ONLY

SOCDULEO
AUTOS
NON-OWNEO
AUTOS CrCY

BOOtLY INJURY (Pv KCfelefU) s

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(P«f aeeMAMI s

s

A

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAS

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE
PHU8870544 07/01/2023 07/01/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE
S 2.000.000

X AGGREGATE
S 2.000.000

1 DEO 1 X| RETEMTIOH S fO-®® | S

e

WORKERS COMPENSATION

ANO EMPLOYERS-UABIirrr YIN
ANY PAOPRIETCIVPARTNEIUEXECUTIVE
OFFICERACIneER EXCLUOEDT | |
(MsnSttery W NH)
VvM.onoilMundtr
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS DelO»

N/A HCHS2024000057S (3a.) NH 0lA)1/2024 01A)1/202S

PER t OTM.
^ STATUTE 1 ER

EL-EAChaCOOEnT S I.IMO.OOO

EX. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
S 1.000.000

EX. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT 5 1.000.000

OESCRIFTTON OF OPCRAnONS 1 LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AMiacAN RwiwM Schteul*, mty M FttaenM IT mora «|iM» Is r*4uW«tf)

Refer lo polcy for exclusionary endorsements artd special provisions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Energy

21 SouthFruilSi..Sle. 10

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES OS CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHOREEO REPRESCNTAnVE

ACORO 25 (2016/03)

e 1988-2015 ACORO CORPORATION. All rights rsssrvsd.

Ths ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



STATEOF KEWHAMPSHIRe SEP05'23 Pf1 1:58 RCV
COMMISSfONER TDO Access: NH
JaredS.Chtohe ^ 1-600-73^2964

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

Christopher J. Bms, Jr.

I  I Tel (603) 271-3670 i

FAX No. 271-1526

Web^

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

21 S. Fruit SL, Suite 10
Concord. N.H. 03301-2429

September 20,2023

His Excellency, Govmtor Christopher T. Simimu
and the Honorable CouncQ

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Han^hire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into an amendment to an
existing SOLE SOURCX contract with Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (VC#I77195),
Beriin, NH, for the Low-Income Housdiold Water Assistance Program, by extending the completion
date from September 30,2023 to March 31,2024, effective iqron Governor and Executive Council
^Tproval. No additional funding is involved with this contract

The original contract was qTproved by Governor and Executive Coimcil on Sqrtembcr 21,2022, Item
#65.100% Federal Funds

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action
Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program
(LIHEAP), their outreach and client service capabilities, the synergies that will benefit the Low
Income Home Water Assistance Program (LIHWAP) as a result of the five statewide CAAs'
implementations of several other federal assistance programs, and the infrastructure that is
already in place to deliver LIHWAP services. The Department proposes to continue to
subcontract with the five CAAs who have successfully provided similar services a! the local
level for more than three decades. The CAAs work closely with the Department's Fuel
Assistance Program Administrator in the implementation of several low-income programs.

LIHWAP is a statewide program, funded by Federal LIHEAP grants, to provide residential water
and sewer arrearage payment services for those making 60% or less of state median income.
Program fimds will provide arrearage payoffs to low-income households.

The US DHHS recently afforded states the opportunity to extend this program for an ̂ ditional
six months. The Department recently sought and received ̂ iproval for this extension. No
additional funds were made available. No funds will be obligated under this contract unless
federal monies are available to be expended.

Page 1 of2 O&C 9/20/2023



In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

.especthillv^ubmitted.

Jared Chicoine

Commissioner

Page2of2 G&C9/2(V2023



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT: FUEL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

amendment

This Amendment dated August 21, 2023, is between the Slave of New Hampshire
Department of Energy, 21 South Fruit Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301
(hereinafter referred to as the "Slate") and Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., 30
Exchange Street, Berlin, Coos County, NH 03570 (bcrcinaflcr referred to as the "Contractor").

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement"), as approved by
Governor and Council on September 21. 2022 (Item U6S). the Contractor has agreed to provide
certain Services, per .the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement and in consideration of
payment by the State of certain surhs as specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement
may be oiodificd or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and
only after approval of such modifieation or amendment by the Governor and Council; and

WHEREAS, The State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and conditions In
the Agreement as set forth herein, the parlies agree to the following:

l; Amendment and ModlficaHon of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and
modified as follows;

A) Comnlction Date: Amend Subparagraph 1.7 of the Agreement by stiiking
the current completion dale of September 30,2023 and inserting in place
thereof the date of March 31,2024.

B) Exhibit C - Pavnveivt Terms: Amend Exhibit C, third paragraph by striking
the current contract date of "upon Covemor and Council approval through
September 30,2023" and inserting in place thereof "upon Governor and
Council approval through March 31, 2024."

C) Exhibit D: Amend period covered by this certification to "upon Governor
and Council approval through March 31,2024."

D) Exhibit E: Amend contract period dates to "upon Covemor and Council
approval through March 31, 2024."

TCCA Afnendmenl Conmcior l/iiiuit;
arti>tt:UirwAP2ioiNHi.wc3;6 . Ditc:

CFDA:9J.56J Pajelof}



C*ONTRACT AMENDMENT

NH DEPT. OF ENERGY

2. Continuance of AErcemtnl. Except as specifically amended and modified by
the Terms and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hcreunder
shall remain in fliil force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions
set forth in the Agreement as it existed immediately prior to this Amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereuulo set their hands as of the day and year first
above written.

STATE OF NEW F^MPSHIRE
NH Deptfment ofEhVgy

Fared Chicoine, Commissioner

TridCounly Community Action Program, Inc.

State of.
County of ('tnfSS

By:

fNamcNfit Tftic of Person Authorized to Sign)

On this Q?|^.day of AoAv^i^ 2023. before me, MiVxA ..the
undersigned officer, p^nm.appcarcd who acknowledged
himselfTherself to be the CcO of Tri-Countv Communitv Action Proirram.
fnc.. a corporation, and that he/she, being authorized so to do. executed the foregoing instrument
for (he purposes contained therein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

*"^'8. Z0Z3 Nofuty^ubri^Jusiice of the Peace
My Commission expires: 0||P

Approved as to form, execution and substance:

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Assistant Attorney General

9/1/2023

TCCA Amendmeni OinirKior Iflitiab;
Oninu:UHWAP2IOIKHLWC3/6 Date- feltlllSS^—
CFDA:93.368 " ''•^Pir2of3



CONTRACT AMENDMENT

NH DEPT. OF ENERGY

I hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the
Stale of New Hampshire at their meeting on SEP ?

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

By:

SfCRCTARY OF SI AT

rCCA Amendment Contriceer Initiils:
Grants: UHWAP2I0INHLWCS/6 Daic:.<["ta\1
CFDA: 93.568 Page3 of3



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. David M. Scanlan, Sccretao^ of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby cenify that TRi-COLTNTY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on May 18. 1965. 1 further ccrtily that all fees and documents required by the Sccrctar)-of State's offtce have

been received and is in good standing as far as this ofTice is conccmcd.

Business ID: 63O20

Certificate Number: 0006I9S524 •

%

O

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be aRl.<<ed

the Sea) of the State of New Hampshire,

this 4ih day of April A.D. 2023.

AN

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

.Sandy Alonzo , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1.1 am a duly elected board chair of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on June 27lh , 2023 . at Nvhich a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

~  (Date)

VOTED: That Jeanne Robiliard CEO and or Randall Pilotte CFO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Tri-County Community Action Program, inc. _ to enter Into contracts or agreements
with the Stale

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further Is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. i hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that It is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
posilion(s) Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:
OfficerofEectSignature

Name: Sandy Alo
Title: Board Chair

Rev. 03/24/20



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE OATc (KkMnmmr)

oencyzon

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER Of INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RK5MTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATTVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUOES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURERISL AUTHORIZED

. REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTinCATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If thi CArtineate Holder b an ADDITIONAL INSURED. th« pollcy(l«s) must h«v* ADOmONAL INSURED provf»lon» or b« sndorMd.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, tutolfcA to th# tarm* and condition* of th* policy, cortsln polldM m«y ra<]ulr« «n endorsomtni A ■tAtomcnt on

MMOUCn

Grose umrance-Wench*si«r

liOOEknSiTMt

MSTKhntcr NH 03l0t

522?^ SosenSuOvenjjHO« (603)668.3219 (603)645^1
(nench.c*ftsOcroseegcncy.com

nrstmiKsi AmMtowo covtiuoe

MSUWRA PMedeiphle indemnity Ira Co . •; 18056
MlUREO

TrFCounty Comnwnly Action Pcognn). Inc
X Exchenge Street

Benin NH 03570

•rsuMu e Ukhwesi Efflptoyerv CesuaRy Company 23612

KSUKSIC

MUKCAD

weuMeRc

IMSUASAF

T

U

c
. E

WS IS TO CER7VY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURAHCC LtSTEO 8aOW HAVE BEEN ISSUEO TO THE IHSUHEO NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PERlOO
eDICATEO. MOTWITHSTANDIHO ANY ftEOUIReM£>/r. TERM OR CONOTTIQN OF AMY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WTIH RESPECT TO WWCH THIS
ERTIF1CATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HCRBIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
XCLUSIONS AND CONDmONS OF SUCH POtCCS. UMTTS SHOWN MAY HAVE 6EEN REOUCEO BY PAC CLAIMS.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
SEP07'22«n

COMMISSIONER ,
J«red S. Chtaoho ^^735.2964\

Tel. (603) ?71.3670.
DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
CtlriMephCf J. EBrro, Jr. FAX No. 271-1526

Website;

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY www^ener®y.nh.oov
21 S. FruaSt., SuKeiO

Concord, N.H. 03301-2429 65
September 6,2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1) Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Enerjjy (NH DOE) to enter into a SOLE SOURCE contract with
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., (VC //177195), Berlin, NH, in the amount of $576,125.00 for the
Low-Income Household Water Assistance Program (LIHWAP)elTeclive upon Govemor and E.xecutivc Council
approval through September 30, 2023. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request arc anticipated to be available in the following account In FY 2023 upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget.

NH Departmenl of Eneruv Water Assistance Program FY 2023

2-52-52-520010-24520000

074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $253,692.00

2-52-52-520010-19880000

074-5.00587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $322,433.00

Tolal: $576.125.00

2) Further request authorization to advance Tri-Gbunty Community Action Program, Inc. $230,450.00 from the
above-referenced contract amount.

EXPLANATrON ^

'ITiis contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical pcrfonnance of the Community Action Agencies j^CAA)
in the New Hampshire Low-lncomc Home Encrg)' Assistance Program (LIHEAP), Ihcir outreach and client
scrvice'capabilitics, the synergies that will benefit the IJHWAP as a result of the five statewide CAAs'
implementations of several olhcf federal assistance progranis, ajid the infrastructure that is already in place to
deliver LIHWAP services. NH DOE proposes to continue to subcontract with the five CAAs who have
successfully provided similar services at the local level for more than three decades. The CAAs work closely
withThe NH DOE Fiiel Assistance Program Administrator in the implementation of several low-income
programs.



I'lu l^cejJcn^.Ciivcm'orChmigphcf 'I". Sui»uno
enU tiK- hlonorabic 0>unci)

l*:)^-2qf2

LIHVtjAP is"a.statcwide prpgr^, fundW.t>y Frferal U.HEAP granis.-lo provide residential water/sewer.arrcarage
payment services for NH Fuel Asslstaricc Program eriro.lled families, including'tHosc who are elderly or'disabled.
Progm fundsiwill provide ane^gc payoffs to Ibw-income households.

Tills LlHWAP program will operating on a September 21.-2022 to September 30,2023 program year No
funds will be obligated iindeV this contract unless federal monies are ayailabic to be expended. The propped
advance of funds will enable the CAAs to operate the program between monthly reimbursements from the'SUte.

in the event that the Fcderal Funds become hb longer available, General Funds, will not be requested to support
this program.

'Respectfull;^4ubmitted,

JaredI'CHico.ihe.
Commissioner
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

WoU'K' Thil acrecment and tU of iu aiischmaoti sbatt becocne public upon sutoisskMi to Oovwn>r tnd
Executive Council for approval. Any ioliarmaiioo that is private, confidaKial or proprktaiy must
be deariy identified to tbe agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the oootnct.

1.

ACRC£M£m
Tbe Sooe of New Hampshire and the Comractor hereby mutually agree as foUowt:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name.
New Kampihi're Dqumnem of Energy

12 Slate Agency Address
21 So. Fruh Street, Ste. 10

Coocord, New Hampshire 01101

IJ CdotisctorName

TrvCoooty Community Action Program, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address
10 Excbange Street, Berlin, NH 03570

1.5 Cootnctor Phone

Nombcr

(605)752-7001

1.6 Account Number

02-$2-52-520IO-l988000a-

S00587 and 02-32-S2-52010-

24320000-500587

1.7 ContpletJon Date
September 10.2021

1.8 Price Umitatkm

S576.I25.00

1.9 Contracting OfGcer for State Agency
Eileen Smiglowski. Pud Assistance Prognro Administrator

l.IO State Agency Telephoae Number
(601) 271-SI! 7

t.ll CotnraciorSignature ^

)  D««:8|30|a3
1.12 NamceodTitleofCoDlnetorSigDaiory
Jcanoe RobiOard, CEO

1.11 Sta^^gency S tgnatun'A 1.14 Name sod Tide ofState Agency Signatory
Christopher EUms, Deputy CoTomtssioner

1.15 Approval by tba Nil. O^srtmeat of Administratiott. Divisibo ofPersonnel

Diirmof, On:

1.16 Approval by Apontay General (Fonn, Substance and Exeoutioo) (if opplkoiAt)

By. ^ On: September 2,2022

1.17 Anmval by the Govemor tod Execmix-e Council O/epptkable)

GAG Item number GAC Meeting Date: 2 \ 2022

Page 1 of5
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J,. SERVICES TO BE PERfQRMXD. The State of New
H&miMhire;. acting ihrough'Uw'figeocy.ideniined in block 1.1
estate**),, engagea contracior identified in block 1.3
("ContrBctor") to perforai, aod ibe Contractor ahall perfcrm, the
work or-sale of gooda, or both, identified'and niore particularly
descnbed in the attached E^QilBfT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Nolwirhsiattding any pid.yision of this Agreement to the
contrary,- aod subject .to the -approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire; if applicable,
this AgrecinCDt, arid all obligations ofihe parties,hereunder, thsll
become ^eciive on the date the.'Governor and Executive

Council .approve lUs Agrecn^t as indjcatcd, io block 1.17,
unless 00 such'approt^ is r^uirc^ in which case'the Agreemeot
ahall become eRiective on the dale the Agreeroeoi is signed by
the State Agency as shown in.block 1. 13 .("EITecilre.DBie").
3.2 if tbe;'.Codtracior commences the Services prior to (he
EfTectivc.Date, all. Services performed by the Cohuactor prior to
the: Effective pate shall, be perform^ at (he sole risk .of the
CoDtmtor.ahd in the'event'ihai this Agree'moti doesnoi become
effrctive, the State shaii have no liability to the Contractor,
including -without iimitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for-any co.^Ls Incurred or Services performed.
Contractor-ihust complcte-'aJl Services by the Completion Date
speciftcd irt block }.?..

4'. CONDITION':^ NAtl/RE OF AC^EMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agr^ment to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including;
without limitation, the conliauance of-paymenis hermnder, are
contingent upon the. availability and continued appropriation of
funds ̂afTcci^ .by any stale, or federal, tegi^ative or ̂ executive
action that reduces, elimirucea or otherwise modifies the
appTDpnanon'or'availability-'of .^'ndijig for ihis.AgrM.menliand
the Scope for Services prpN^ed in ETQflBrT B, in'whole or in'
part. In no event shall the-Staie be liable-for any payments
hereunder tn.excess of such available-appropnated funds. Io the
event of a reduction-or temiihation of appropriated hmds, (he .
S.iaie'.shall have, (he right to .^jhhold payment uiitll such funds
b^m a^Hable, if ever; and ̂ 11 haye 'thfe to reduce or
lermthaie ihe-Serv.iccs'under this Agreefneni immcdiatdy upon
giving dw Contractor notice of .such reduc'uon or terminatioa
Tbe Stale shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source-to the; Account identified in .block i :6 in the
eveni.funds in thai ACMuhi are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The conrract price, method of payment, arki terms of payment
are identified and more particularly .described in EXHIBIT C
.which is incorporated herein by reference.

'5.2 The payment .by the State of the contracr price shall.be the
only and iHe'-cbniplete reimburiement b (he Cbritractor.for ell
'upenses, of whatem naufc incurred by'the Cohu^rbr in'the
perfomiaQce hereof, and shall be the, only and (be -complete
cpmpeosation to.the Cpniracipr for the Seryic». The Sbi'e shall,
have no liabiliiy to the Conifactor other thjtifli.ihe conifact'price.
'3.3 The State' reserves the right to' offset from aay amounts
otherwise paysble-to ihe.Contractor un^er this Agreement those
liquidated amounLx required or-permitted 'by-N.H. RSA '80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provisicm of.law.
3.4 No.twid^hding .any ̂ vision in .this Agrumem 'to (he
ccmtrary, and nptwiihsta.nding (mexpec.iedJcircumstarKes.-in no
event.shali the loial of all peymenis 6ut^rt2ed,.'qr actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in bioek.1.8.

6. CpMPLL-kNCE BY CO.NTRA.CTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATION^ EQU.^ EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performaoce of ibe S.ervices, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and ordeii of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose .any obligatioa .or duty upon (he
Contractor, including, but. not limited to, civil rights and equal
empbyment.opponuaiiy laws. Io addition, ifjhis Agrcenient is.
funded in any pan by mooics of Ibe United States, the Gohtnctor
shall comply with oil federal executive ordeni. rules, regulations
and .Matutes, and .with any rules, regulations'and.guidelmes as the
State or the United Siaiu issue t(i impjement.lhwe regulations.
The Comractdf shall also comply with ali.epplicible intellecruai
property laws. .
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Coriiraclor shall.no'i
discriminate' against employees or applicants for'cmpjo'ytimi
because of race, color, religbn, creed, age, sex.-h^icap, sexual,
orientation, or naiionaJ origin and will take alTinnQtive action to
pr'eyeni'such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor ogites to pennit (he.Sta'tc ot. United-States
occessjo any of the Coiitractor's books,.recbr^ and,accouhts for
the purpose ofabcrtainingcompliasce.with.'alj rulcs.'.regijlaliohs
and otdera, and the covenants, terms and .cotidUibhs. of ilus
AgreemenL

7. personnel.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide otr.personnci
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warivits that
oil personnel mgaged -in the Services'shall be qualified 'to
perform the Services, and slull be .properly licenkd and
otherwise authorized lo do so under all,applicable laws..
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in wriung. during-be leim of
this Agreement, end for a period of six (6) months ofbr the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall oot hire, and
shall not permit., aoy Subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whdrh tl is engaged .in a combiited-efToft to
perform the Service.^ to hire; any peirsoh wbo.'is 6 S.tale em'ployee
or official, who is materially involved in, (he p'rbc'bcm.enl.

Page 2 of 5
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fidmriisntion or perfo'rrun'ce of A^cmcnt. This
provision sIull-surviyeUerniinfiLipp df(hii AgrMment.
7:3 The Coniraciing d^ifcr'specified-in Kloclc 1 •.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the Slate's representative, fn' the'eveni ofany
dispute corwcrhing ibe mierpretaiion' of 'this Agreement, the
Contnciihg Orncer's decision shairbe ftnal for the State.

8. EVEN't.pF PEFAULf^MEDlES.:
8.|- Any one or'iDore'of t^' fpUovong acts or omi^ion.s of the
Contractor shatl constitute on.event of default hcreundcr ("Event
of.pefauli"):
8.1.1 feilune to p^oncD, the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1 .l.faihire to submit ony report required hereunder, aod/or'
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenani,.term or condition of
this'Agreemenl.
8.7'Upbo the occurrence of any Evenl of Default, the Siaie may
take any one, qr.'mdrc; or all,-of the followirig acudfis:
8.1l give ̂ e'ContriKtora smnenhoticetspecifyiog the Eveni'of •
Default and requiring it {o be'remedied within, in the absence of
a greater, or lesser specific&tion of time, thirty (30) days from (lie
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not limely'cured,
terminate (his Agreement, efTective two (2) days.after giving the
Contfactor notice of (ermirtaiion;

8.2.2 give.the pifntractor p written notice specifying die Event of
Default and su^en'ding. all payments (d be- made under this
Agreenient and ordering that the poriion of the contract price
v^ch would otherwise accrue to the Coniractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
deienriihes that the (Ikintractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never.be paid to (hel.Coatmctor,
6.2.3 give.the Co.ntractor.a.written odtice specifying the Event of
Pefault and set off against any oih^ obljgoiio^ the Stale may '
owe to theXotttrMtor any 'dama'gM.lhe Siate'sufTers by reason of
any Event of Default;.'8nd/or
l2.4 give (he Coatracior a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, .'treat (he Agreement as 'breached, terminate the
Agreemcnt'and punue.ony of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8:3. No failure by the State .to enforce any, provision.^ hereof efler
any Event of Oefatjlt shall he deemt^ a iMiycrdf its rights' with
regard to that -Event of De&ult, or .ah'y. s'ubs^uent Event of
Default No express.faititfe to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed awaiver of therigbt of the Slate to enforce each and
■all of the provisions hereof iipon aiiy funher or-diher Event of
Default'on the part of the Contractor.

9. termination.
9.V Notwitbsian'ding parag^.h 8, (he State may; ai its sole
disciTtion, termjnaie (be A'greeirierit for any rea^n, in whole or
in part, by thirty (3P)'days wriRen noilM to ihe Contractor that
the Sine is exoctsing its option to terminate the Agreemeoi.

Page 3

9.2 In the event ofan early termination of.this'Agreement'for
any reason other than the .completion of -the Services, the
Contractor shall,, at., the' State's diKr^oh, .deliver to the
Contracting OfTic'er, not Iaterlhan'hfteen(l5) days'afler the date
of termination, o report ('Tcrmihotidii Report'^ describing io'
detail all Services performed, and tte contract price earned, to
and including (be date of term'inatioa The form; subject miner,
ccnieni, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be tdenlical to.those ofany Final Report described in (He ei'tachad
EXHIBIT B. In a^ition. at the.State'sdiscreliba.'the.Comrsc(or
shall, within 15 days, of notice of early lerminatip'n, develop and
submit to the State o tran.viion'Pfan for scfyices tmder the.
Agreement

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
preservation.
lO.-l Asased in this Agreement, word "data" shall meiah oil
information and things devel^;>ed or obtained.dtjHng
perfonnarKC of, or acquired or developed by reason of, (his
Agreement, including, bUi noi limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound-recordings, video
recordings, pictorial .rcpr6di^tions,.drettir^s, aailyses', ^phk
representations, co.mputcr programs,'c.bmjmterp.rinlbuts,.i^tes.

' letters, me.morondq, papers, wd tjocthneriis, ajl wl^ther
finished or unfinished.
10.2'All data and any property which has been received from
the Stale or purchased with fuods provided-for (hat purpose
under this Agreemeni, shall be ibe property of the State, and
.shall be returned to the Siaie.upoa deroand'or upon terminaiion
of this AgreeriKhi for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data sball.be'gdyenKd byN.H. RSA,
chapter 91'A or other existing law! Disciosu.re'of^ta require,
prior wriiien approval of the Stole.

11; CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. Ih the
performance of this Agreement.the Contractor is in-all respects
.an indcpendeot cooiractof, and. is neither .ah agent nor an '
employee of the State. Neither .the, .Contractor .rkfr any of its

'ofTicers, employees, agents or members s^ll have. authority to
bind the Stale or receive any benefits, w.orkcrs' corope'r^tion or
other emoluments provided by the Suite to iis employees.

12. ASSlCNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCON'rRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not afsign, or otherwise 'transfer.ooy
interest.in this AgriMmeni without (Ik prior wrilleb ixittce, which
shall be provided to the State ot .l^t 5(1^.(13) days prior lO;
the assignment, and a .written consent of ilM'Statd: For purpo^
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute'
assignment "Change of Control" means .(a) merger,
consolidation, or a'transactioo or scries of related transactions In
which a third party, together with its afljiiates, becomes the
dir«.t or indirect, owner of fi fty pcr^i '(30%) or more of the
voting shares or similar ^uiiy iniefesls, or combing, voting

ofS
Contre.ctpr Ini.tials

Date
.  TGCA--2IPINHLWC5/6

.e^DA#9.3.568



Federal -Award Date: May 28. 2021
UEI: F44JKSNJDJM6
povuer oflhe Conir8C(or,-or (b)'the'sate of all or substantially all
of the asseti-of the Contractor.

12.2 None .of the--Services shall be .nbco'ntncied by the
COQliactor without.prior-^iten notice and conKni of the State.
The State is'entitled.to Mpies of all'subconiracts and a.^igmnmt
agr^ments sM shall not t^'bdiipd by-any provisions contain^
in a subcontract or en ossigomeot agreement io.whlch it is not a
party.

13. f^lOEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise'exempted by law.
the ContrtKiOf shell lodemnify ai^ hold lurrhlus the State, its
ofTtcen -ai^ empIoycM, from' and against, any and all claims.,
liabitiiies and cosis'for any persottal ituury or property damages,
patent or copynght'inrriogement, or other claims ossencd against
the State, its .ofTicert.or employees, which arise out offer-which
r^y Ik.'claim.ed to ense out dO the'acu pr oimuioo of the
Con^recic^, 'or subcontrocidrs, irtcluding but not limited I'o the
negligence, recUess or-ihtentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred-by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed-to consiiiute a waiver of the sovereign
immuniry of the State,.which immunity i.i hereby reserved to the
•State. This .covenwi. in paregn^>h 13 shall survive the
termination of tius AgrMmeni,

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole -expense, obtain and
continuously, maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and nuintain in foroe, the
following iosuranM:
14.1.1 cpmmercia'i'general liability insurance agpinst ail claims
of b^ly injury, death or properly damage, in amounLx of not
(ess than Sl'.000,000-per occurrence end $2,000,000 aggregate
'or excess; and
'I4.L2 special.cauK of loss coverage form covering all propeny
subject to subpafe^ph 10.2 herein, in an am'o.unt not (ess .than
•80%.of (he w^le' r^lacemehi -^liie of tbe'pfo^.r^.
I4.2-Thep6}(cie.<des^bedinsubp^'g'raph U'.l heroin'shallbe
on poljcy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.'H. Deponment of Insurance, and
Issued by insurers licensed in the State of New.Hampshire.
14.3 The Coninictor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block' l.S|,:6r his or her.suecei^r, a cmtficaicfs) of
insurifKe for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Concmcior shall also' furnish to'.tiK (^htracling OfTKcr idenlified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificaiefs) of insurance
for all ren'e>vBl(s) of insurance required under* ihix Agreement no
later.'than ten-(lO) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy, llie ceriificatefs) of insurance and any
rerwwaU thereof shall be.altached.and arc incorporated herein by
refereoc'e.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATiON.

15.-I By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
Bnd;warranis that the Contractor is in.compliar^ withior exempt
from, the requiramenopf N.H. RSA chapter 28 l-A/"lfja/*er/'
CqhipMSOilon").
13.2, -To the extent the-Contractor is subj^i tb'ihe'.requireirtents
ofN.H. RS.A chapter 281-A, Contractor shajlmuq^n, and^
require cn)^ subcontractor or a.xsignee to secure and moimaio,-
;paymeni of -Workers' Com^nsaiibn. iri connectioo with
aclivides which the person proposes ib undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9. or his or her succeswr; proofbf Workers'
,Compensation in, the manner described in N:.H: chapter
'2SI>A and any appli^'ble renewalfsj ihmof, which shaU'be:
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
ahall not be respofuibte for* paymeni of asy W.orfcen'''
Cpmpensaiion 'premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
ContTKipr, or any'subcontractor .or empjqyK qf 'Co'ntrac'to'r.
which might arise under applicable' State" of New Hampshire'
-Workers' Compensiion laws in conaection with the-
performance of ihe'Ser\'iccs under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any ooike by a party'hereto (b the other party
shall-be deemed lo'have been duly delivered or given at the (imo
of ifiai.ling by'co'nified mail, postage prepaid, in a United Suies
Pom office addressed .to the parlies, at'die'addresses given iii
blocks 1.2 and i .4. herein.

17. amendment. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by.on instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereib aiid only aficr appr6>ral 'of such-amcndrnmi,
waiver or discharge, by the Governor, arid &ecuijvc'-Cpuricil .of
the Stale of New Hampshire unle.v no such'epproval is re'quired
under the circumstances pursuant to Staia law, njic or policy.

IS. CHOICE OF'LAW AND FORUM.ThisAgrccrncnl shall
be governed, Interpreted and consmihd in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Kantpshire, and is bihdmg .'upon 'aod
inures to tlie benefit of the parties and iheir'r^Kcliye succ^sprs .
-pnd'Q^igns. Tbe-wording used in .this Ag'n^mi is.ihe vrordtrig
chosen by the parties to expreu their mutual intent, and tie rule
of construction shall be applied agairui or in.favor of any party.
Any actions arising but of this Agrcemeai shaillbe brought aod
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have

■excltLSive jufisdjciion thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P07 form (as. tDodlfted in' ETO^IBlt
A) and/or anachments and emendraeni theraof, the terms of the
P>37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control. . '

20. THIRD parties. The parties hereto .do not intend tn
benefit any third parties and this' Agreiement tholl rioi be
constrtjed to confer any such benefit. <

Page 4 of 5
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.Eedera) Award Dale: May 28. 2.021
UEI; F44jKSNJDJM6

'21. HEADINGS. .The-headmg.^ (hroughouiUhe Agreement ore
.for reference- puipo^ orily, and (he words contained ihereio
shall in ttb'wey be beld to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the,
.i.nterpixtotion.'cdretrueiidn or-meaning of ihe.'pibvisibns of this
Agreement;

22. .SPECIAL roOVJSlONS. Additional 'or modifying
provisions set forth in thc sttaehcd EXHIBIT A are ineorporated
.hcreinby reference.

23. SEVCRABILJTY. In tbceveatanyoftheprovisio'ns.ofihis'
Agreement arc held by a court of corapelcnl jurisdictioo to be
contrary lo.eny.state or federal.law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in fuU'lbrcc.end.effoct.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. Thii A^eemerii, ̂ ich'maybc
e*«utcd in a number df'coontcrpt^s.'Mch of -^ch sWI be'
deemed on original, constitutes t.he' entire 'agreeinehi
understanding between the panio, a'od supersedes all -pr^r
agreements and understondir^s wiih respect to the subject maner
hereof.

Page 5 of 5
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EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PRO VISIONS

1. On or before the date scl forth in Block 1.7 of the General Provisions, the ContrBctor s.halJ
deliver to the State an independent audit of the Contractor'.s entire agency by a quaJ.i fij^;
independent auditor in good standing with the slate and federal government.

2. This audit shall be conducted in acccrdahcc with the auditTetjuiremcnts of Office of
Managem^t and Budget (0MB) Circular 2 CFR 200, Subp^ F- Audit Requirements.

3. This audit rq>ort shall include a schedule of revenues and cxpendirurcs by contract or grant
number of all expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. The Gontroclor shall utilize a
cofhpetiiiyc. bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor.

4. The audit shall be forwarded to NH DQEwiihiri one month of the lime of receipt by the
Agency, accompanied by an action plan for each finding or questioned cost.

5. Delete the following from paragraph 10 of the General Provisions: "The form, subject niatter,
content; and tiu'mbcr ofcbpies of thcTcnninatidn Report shall beidcntical to those of.ony.Final
Report described in Exhibit A."

6. "ntc costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost principles
detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpait E - Cost Principles.

7. Progiiam.arid financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the Agency for 3
(thrce) .ycars from the date of submission of the final expenditure report per 2 CFR 200.333 -
.Retention Requirements for Records and until ail audit findings have been resolved.

8. In accordancc With Public Uw 103-333,Jhe '*Depart;mcnts ofLabor, Health and Human
.Sciyiccs, and ̂ ucationi and Related Agencies Appropriations Act of I995*'i.thc following
provisions are applicable to this grant award:

a) Section 507: "Purchase of Amcrioan-Madc Equipment and Products" tiisthe sense
of the Congress thai, to the greatest extent practicable, all equipment and products
purchased with funds made available in this Act should.bc Amcrican-m'ade."

b) Section 508: " When issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid
solicitatioris and other documents describing projects or programs funded in .whole or in
part with fcdcral money, all states receiving federal funds, ihcludirig but not linutcd to
stale and local goyemfncnts and recipients of federal research grants, shall clearly state
(l) the percentage; of the total costs of the progr^ or project which wj.U be financed
with federal money, (2) the dollar amount of federal funds for the project or progfam,
and (3) the percentage and dollar amount of the total costs of the project or p.rog^ that
will be financed'by non-govc'rhincntai sources."

TGCA J10INHLWC3/6 . A, Bj
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9. CL0SE:6.UT of contract. All finai required reports and reimbursement r.^u«is shall be
subrrtitted to the State within ihiny (30) days of the completion date (Agreement Block 1.7).

11). advances..Advance funds must be used solely for appropriate LIHWAP expefiditiires.
Advance program funds are to be used.only .for Water Assistance Pro^am vendor payments: All
Water Assistance Program payments, including Advoricc program paymcnts,.must be transferred,
from the.Community Acti.on Agency's gcncraJ operating account into the CA.A's LIHEAP
account;and assigned wih a.spccific account # to differentiate those funds from LlrtEAP pro^am
funds within 48 hours after .being received electronically from the Stale. CAAs must isiibmitihc •
bank account number of the.dcsignated.bank account for the advance funds to NH;DOE prior to
the electronic siibmissiori of the funds to the CAA. Unspent Advance program funds must remain
in the FAP dedicated,a«ount at all times and cannot be cominglcd wiiJi any Other CAA (uhdis..
CAAs are required to submit a complete electronic copy of the FAP-dodicoidd bonk account
.statement to NH QOE ori.a monthly basis.

TCC/SJI0INHLWC3/6 EiWhiu A. B
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EXHIBITS

SCOPE OF SERVICES

T>.c Contractor a^ccs to provide Low?bcomc Household WalCT Assistance Program services to
qualified Iqw incomc individuals, and agrees to perform all such services and o^ct wpric necessary to .
opcratis tbe'Prog^.ih accordance with the requirements of.this contract, the principlcs.and objectives
set, forth ;in the .Low-Income Household Water. Assistance Program Procedures Manual, Information
Mernpranda, and other guidance as determined by NH ODE.

Water Assistance Pro^am (LIHWAP) services will be defined.io include the following categories:

1. Outreach,,'eligibiliiy, determination and certification of UHWAP applicants.

2. Payments directly to watcr/scwcr vendors to rcmpve water/sewer arrearages for currently
qualified clients

3. Paym'ents.dirwily to current landlbrd.s.for proven water/sewer arrearage amounts fdr their
renters vyho. pay"their water/sewer costs as undefined portions of their rent.

TCCA 210JNHLWC5/6 Qhibiu A.aitCj
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EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the services as determined by the Siatc, the Stale

agrees to pay over to the CohttQCtor the sum of I576,I2'5.!00 (which hereinafter is refcTTCd to as the

^Graht").

Upon the Siatc'srcccipt of the 2022 LIHWAP American Rescue Plan Act Consolidated
Appropriation Act grants from the US Department of Health and Human Services,-and Goveriioi^.and

Execurtvc Cpuncil-approval. thc.following.fuhds will be authorized:

American Rescue Plart Act;

S37.838.00 for.administration costs, of which $ 15.135.00 will be issued as a cash advance;
$21.5,854.00 for. program costs, of which. $86,342.00 will be issued as a cash advance;

Consolidated Appropriations Act:
$47,003.00 for administration Posts, of which $18,801.00 will be issued as a cash advance;

$275,436.00 for program costs, of which $110,172.00 will be issued as a cash advance;

The dates for this' contract are.upon Opvcmor and Council approval through September 30, 2023.

Approval to obligate (Exhibit 1) the above-awarded funds will be provided in writing.by the New

Hampshire Department of Eacr^ to the Contractor as the Federal funds become available.

Drawdowns frorh the balance.of funds will be made to the Contractor only after written documentation

of cash.,need is subrnittcd'tp thc.'Slatc. Disbursement of the Grant shall be iri accordance with

procedures established by the State as detailed in the Low-lncomc Household Water Assistance

Progfam'PiPecdures K4^ual.

CFDA Title;

CFDA No: ,

Award Name:-

Federal Agency;

TCCA210I.NHLWC5/6

CFDAJr9).56S

Low Income Home Energy Assistohce Pro^m

93.568

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program

Dept, of Health & Human Services
Administration for Children and Families

Office of Community Services

RxhWi* a,'B'£ j
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rSEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF EN.ERCY

STANDARD EXHIBIT 0

The Contractor ideritined In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5l5l -516Po.fthc pnjg-Free Workpixc.Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 V.S.C.,
701 cf.scq;j, ftnd further agrees to have the Contractor's,representative, as identified in Sections'!. 11 and 1,.I2 of
ihe Genera! Provisions,; execute the following Certification:

CERTIFfCATlON ReCARDUNC DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE.REpLI.IREPdENtS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US department of HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CDhh'RAGTO.RS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION-CONTRACTORS *-

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LADOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

This certification is required by.the.rcgulations implementing Sections-5151-5IM of ihc.DtVg-Frcc.Worlcplai^.
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690,'Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.701 et seq.). The January 31. .1989 regulations were
amended and published as Part 11 pf May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages 21681-21691), and require
certification by grantees (and by ihCcrencc sub-grantees and sub-contractors) prior to awaid th'at.they will
maintain'a dnig-rfrce workplace. Sd:tion 3017.630(c) of the rcgulalioD provides thai a grantee (and by inference
sub-gramees.and sub-cpotmctors) (hat is a siate may elect to make one certificatipn lo'the Department in each
federal fiscal^ycor in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification.
The certificate set out below is a material representation of'faci upon which reliance is placed.when the Agency
awards, the grant... False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds forsuspension of payments,
su's'pension or tcrfnination.of grants, or government-wide suspension ordebarmcnf. Contractor using this form
should send it to: '

I

LCHWaP Director, New Hampshire Department of Energy,
21 So. Fruit St., Ste. 10, Concord. NH 0330,1

(A) Thc-grtnlec certifies that it will or will continue lo provide a drug-frec'workplacc by:

(a) Publishing a ̂ .element notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribulipn,
dispensing, possession ofor use of a controlled substance is.prohibited lathe grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of^cb
prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free nwarcncss.program to inform employees about

(1) the dangers.of.drug abuse inlhc woHcplace;
(2) the grantee's policy of mainlainiDg a drug-free workplace;
(3) .any available drug counseling, rchabililetion, and.cmployee assistehcc programs; and
(4) the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug-abuse violations occurring in

the wori^lace:

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of ibe.grant.be
.'^yen.a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);.

(d) Notifying the employee io the stal'emeDl required by paragraph (a).that, as a condition of
cotpioymcni under the.grant, the employee will

(I) .abi.dc by thc termsofthc statement; and r

P37 Exhibits D thru H
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GERTIFICATJONi^GAI^iNC DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
alternative i - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIYIDUAXS, cont'd

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US.DEPARJMENT of AGWCULTURE - CONTRACTORS
uioEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

(2) nplify ihc employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation bjfa crimihal drvg
siatuie'wcurnhg-in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction..

•(e) Notifymg the agency .in writing, within.tencalendar days after recciying notice under
sub'fi^gra'pb (d.X^) from an employee or oiherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position tit le, to every gro^t
■o^iceron whosc'granraclivity the convicted employee was workJng, unless the Tederbl agency
has d.»i^oled' a'cemrat for the ^eipt of such noiicu! Notice shall include (He
identificatibh pumlxr^s) of each affected grani;

(0 TbI^S ^1*^' folldwihg actions,- within 30 calendar days oTreoeiylhg.notice-'urider
subparagrapb (dX2), with respect to any employee who is so convicied:

(1) Taluhg appropriate pefsorinel action-against such an employee, up to arid,including
(cnninaiion. consistent with (he reouiremenis of (he. Rehabilitation Act of 1.973, as
amended; or

(2). Requirin'g'such.emplpyee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
fehabilliatioh pro^m approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or local health, jaw
enforcement, or other appropriate agency.

(g) Making'a.good faith effon to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through'implemeniation
of paragraphs (a)', (b), (c). (d). (e), ond (0-

(B) The'grantee ihqy insert in (he space provided below ibe site(s) for the^perfonnence of work done in
corinection with the sp^ific grant.

Place of Performance;'(streei address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location),  ̂ . . .

Check Q if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. September 21,2022 to September 30,-2023
Contractor Name period covered by this Cenificaiion

Jeanne Robillard. Chief Executive'Offi.cer (CEO)
Name and Title of Authori^ Cpntrocipr Representative

e>l30l^D..
ContnfflQHj^fC^ S.igr^ure. Date

P37 Exhibits'D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT QF ENERGV

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

l^e CoDtractor identified in Section 1.3 of (he Ceneral Prpwsiotis agrees to comply with the provisions of
Scctibn"3I-9 of Public Low lOl-lii/Coycmment wide Guidance for New Restrictions on,Lobbying,'and.31
U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have.the. Contractor's.representative, as identified in Sections LI I and 1.12.of
the GenerarFhpvisions,-execute (he following Certification:

I

certification REGARDING LOBBYiNG

US Department OF TOAtTH and human services - contractors
us DJEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTI^fENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABpR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Programs (indicate applicable program.ccyered):
LIHWAP

Contract Period: September 21,2022 to September 30, 2023

The undersigned certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that:

(1) No fedemd.appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of ibc undersigned, to any
pmpn" for influcnciDg'or attempting to influence an officer or employee ofany agency, a member of
Confess, ah officer .or employee of Congress, ofan employee of a member of Congressin connection
with the awarding ofany federal contract', continuation, renewal, amendmeat, or m^ification ofany
federal contract, grant, loan, or cpoperative agreement (and by specific mention sub>graniee or sub-
coniracior).

(2) If any fiindsoiher (hah'federal appropriated funds have been paid or will.be paid to any person for
■influencing'or attempting to influence en officer or employee of emy agency, a member of Congress, an'
officer or OTploycc of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congrcw in cpnhect.ibh with this
federal contiact',.grant, loaD,.or cooperative agreement '(and by s^ific mention subrgrantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Form to. Report
'Lobbying'^ in accordance with ils instructions. anachcd and idchlified as Standard.Exhibit E-l.

(3) 'The'undersigned shall require that the language of this ccrtificatioh be incl.uded in iheaw^d document
for $ub-ewa^.s at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipjients shall certify and disclose accordingly:

This certification is a-materiaJ representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when ihls transaction was
nmde'or entered into. Submission of (his certification is a prerequisite for'making orentcniig into ihls trapraciion
imposed by Section 1352, Titkr31, U.S..,Codc. Any person who fails to fi le the required ccrlificalion shall.be
subject to a civil B^tU oBhti Jj^ $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such.failure.

!  Jeanne Robillard, CEO
CoatraSSr Representative Signature Conlrectof's Representative Title "

Tri-Ccunty Community Actidri Program. Inc.
.Contractor'Name Date
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NE>y H A/^SHIRE DEPARTMENT Of ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Cooiractor identified in Scctioh' l;3:6f Lhc Ccncfal.Proyisions.agrees to roniply wi.th thcproyisions'of;
Executive .OfTicc of the President, Execuliw Order 12549 and"45;CFR Port 76'rcgnrding Dcbamcnt.:Su5pension,
and OiheT Rc^nsib'illly Matters, ani forther agnxs to have the Contractor's reprcscniaiivc, es.ldcntificd in
Sections I'.U and l.i2 of the.Oencral Provisions, execute the following Certification: -

GERlinCATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION. AND OTHER
RJESPdNSIBILltY MAtTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSAGTIONS

Instructionsfor Certification

(1) By signing and submitting this proposal (contraci). the prospective primao- participant is providing the
■certification sct.but bcJow.

(2) The inability ora perspn to provide the «rtiflcation required below will not necessarily result in,denial of
participation iri ihis covered transaction. If neccs«ry. ihe prospectivc participanfshall stibmifah
explanation ofwhy.it cannot.providc the certification. The ccrtificaiion or explanation will be.considered in
connection with tbc;NH.DQE's d.eicrminotion.vyhether to enter into ibis transaction. However, failure of the
prospective primary, pariicipant lo.furhish.a certificalioh or iin.explanalion shall disqualify such* pcrspn.Drbm'
participation in'lhis tra.nsactipn.

(3) .The ccrtificatioa'ih this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was jplaccd when NH
DOE dclcmtioed to cofer into this transaction. If it is later detcrnubcd that the prospective primary
participwt lyiowingly .rendered an erroneous ccrtificaiion, in addiilon to other remedies avollablc to the
federal govcmmcnl, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The prospective prirnary participant shall provide immediate written notice to,the NH DOE agency.lo'whom
this proposal.(conuact) is submitted if'at any time the prospective primary participant.learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become cironcous by reason of changed .circuinslanccs.

(5) The terms "covered transaction,"''dcbancd," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower ticreoycrcd transaction;"
"part.icipani;* '''pcrepn,"''!prtm80' cpvcred transaction," •'principal," "proposal," and 'Voluntarily excluded,"'

" as .used in this clause, have thc.meanings set .out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rvilcs
mipicmcnling^Excculive Ordcr 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. Sec the attached dcfinitiohs.

(6) prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this propps.al (contract) that should the proposed
covered transaction be cnlcfcd into, it shall not knowiri^y enter Into any lower tier covered transaction with
a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily ,excluded from participatioo in this:
covered transaction, ubless,auihorizcd:by NH DOE

(7) TTtc prospective primaiy paniciparit ftirther agrees by submitting this'proposal that it will include theiclause
tilled "Gcrtificatioii Regarding Dcbannent. Suspension, Incligibiiiiy"and Voluntary ,Exclusion - Lower Tier

■ Covered tr^sactions;" provided by'NH.DOE, without modifica.tion, in all lower tier covered transactions
and in.all solicitations for lower:ticr covered transactions.

(8) A pprticipaot in a cpycrcd trartsactipn .may rely upon a certification of a prospective participani.in a lower.tier
covered transaction that,it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from ihc covered
iransoclion, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may dccidc thc method arid
frcquciiicy by'which it .determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, twt Is not required
to, check the Non-procurcrrient List (ofexcludcd parlies).

(9) . Nothing contalncd'in the foregoing shall be construed to require csiablishriKni of a system of record's in order
to rcndcr in good failh.the.certification requir^ by this clause. The knowledge and ihformaiion.of.o
participant is hot required to exceed.thai which is normally possnsed by a prudcnl persort in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

(10) Except for traosaclioniauthorizcd under paragraph 6 of.these inslAic.fions, if a participant in a.cover^
transaction knowingly c'litcrs'irilo.a lower tier .covered iransoclion with a person who is suspended, dcb.yred,
ineligible, or volunlaniy excluded from panicipaiioD in this transaction, in addition to.oilier rcrficdics,
available, to the federal gO.ycrdmcnl, NH DOE'may terminate this transaction for cause or default.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENJ, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBIUTV MATTERS - PRrMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

CeiiijicqUon Regarding DcbarmenU.Suspenshn, and Other
KespansibUily Matters." Primary Covered Trdh'sdctions

(1) TSc prospective primary panicipanl certifies to the best of its khowlcagc and belief; that ii;ahd .ii8
principals:

(a) arc not presently dcbarr^, suspended, proposed.for debarmcnt, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered iransaciidns by any federal dep^mcnt or agency;

.(b). have hoi wilhin a thrc.e-ycar p.crio.d preceding this proposal (coniract),becn convict^ of or had a
civil judgment-rendered against'them for commission offraud or for a criminal ofT^se.in
coiinixtion with obtaining, aiicmpling to obtain, or performing a public (federal, stale ot local)
iransftctlpn or .a cpniraci under a.public trarisaclion; violation of Federal or State antiirust'^lutes
or^mmission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsificaiionor'dcstfuctipn of records,
making false statements, or receiving sioIct properly;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a gpvercmcntal entity
(federal, ̂late orjocal) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated lb paragraph (1) (b) of
ihis'certificatiqn; and

-.(d) have not within a thrcc-ycar period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
(federal, siate.or local) tr^sactions terminated for cause or default.

(2) Whc'ric thelprospe.ctive primary participant is unable to certify to any of the slaicmenis in this
'certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this'prppOMi (contract).

Certification Regarding Debarmcnt, Suspension, IneiigibiUty 'o'tid
yotuntary delusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions

'(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, os defined in
45 CFR Pan' 76. certifies to ihc.besi of its knowledge and belief t^i it and lis principals:

(a) we noiprescntly debarred, suspended, proposed for dcbanncni, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
'cxdu'ded from pantcipation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is uoablc. to certify to any of the above, such
p.rospcctiyc pailici'pani shall attach an explanation to'ihis proposal (contract).

The prpspcc.llvc lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will includc ihis
clausecntitik "Certiiricaiiori Regarding Debarmcnt, Suspcn^qn, Incligibility. and Voluntary Exclusioit -.Lower
Tier .Covered Tra]tsactions,]^ithout modification in all lower tier-covered transactions and in alj solicitations for
tower tier<overm trans^iftiV'

V  JeanneRobillard,CEO
^htScirRe^i^niativc Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Tri-Counly Corhmunity Action Pro^m,!lnc.
Contractor NartK Paic
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

standard exhibit G

CERTIFICATION REGARDINGTHE

AMERJGANS WITH DISABILITIK ACT.COMPLIANCE

The Continctoridentified.iD Seciion 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signalure of the Contractor's
rcprtsen^^jye OS idemifi^. ip SMiio.os 1.1.1 and 1.12 of the. General Provisions, to execute-the following'
certification:

By signing a.ndrsubmiiiing this proposal (contract), the Conlractor'agrees to .make reasonable efTorts. to
comply witb.all applicable.prbvislbns of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1.990.

CEO

Cohlraci^Rftrcsenlatiyc Signature Coolrtctor's Representative-Title

Tri»Countv Community Action Program. Inc.

CONTRACTOR NAME DATE

UHWAP 2 iqi NMLWCva

CFOAWJ.Mt

.P37 Exhibils D thni H

Initials^



NEVy HAMPSHIRE department (OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHtBIT H

CERTIFICATION

Public Law 103-22.7, Part .C
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKJE

In.acc'ordancc wiih Part C of P.ublic Uw 10.3-22?, ihe *Tro'-ChUdren Aci of 1*994",.smoking may noi be
permitted in any pbrtion-bfany indoor facility owned or regularly used for d)e provision of.hcailh, ;d.ay car.c.
educat ion, or libra'ty scrvnccs. tp children under the age of 18, if the services ore funded by federal pro^ths either
directly or through stale of'local gbvcmmcnts. Fcdcrai program's include gmnis, cooperative agreements, loans
and loaD-guamntees, and contracts. The low .docs not apply to children's services 'provided in private 'residences;
faciliticSTurid.cd solely by'iyled.icare or Mcdicaid.funds, and portions or fecilities used for Inpalient-drug or
.-alcohol ireatmebt.

Tbc-abovc.languagc musi be included in any sub-awards thai contain provisio.ns for childrcn's.scrvicei? and,that
,a'n'sub-grwitecs shall certify compliance accordingly. Failure to comply with the provisions of this law m'a^ result
inthc imposition of a.civnrmonctao'.pciuity of up to 51,000 per day.

CEO

ConQB^r.Repjx.sentaiive Signature

Tri-Count'v Community Action Progfam. Inc.

Contractor's Rcprcscniaiivc Title

Coniractot-Namc Date

(^AP2IO)NHLWCS/6
<:FDAir9).964
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LIHWAP- Appr«vtl,teObjlgttc

STATE

Rftt 7/i/?019 Wood and SEAS Only

^MFLpONLY
APPRpy^, TO OBLIGATE

FUEL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

Eifa'tbll

ADMIN. FA PROGRAM ■SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
538^20.00 5,646,370.00 4,582.60 357,200.00 6,546,372.60=

EXPECTED BUDGET
PREVIOUS Ly OBLIGATED

0.00
o.iw

0.00
.0.00

p.oo
d.oo

0.00
6.00

0.00
o.od

[WIS APPROVAL-TO OBUGATE. - : = 0.00 ..: 0..00 '  0.00 0.00 - .  • 1,165,551.00- 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE

0.00
538,220.00 .

1.165,551.00
4,460,616.00

0.00
4,582.60

■  0.00
357.200.00

-1.16"5.551.00-
5.380621.80

BMCA.
FIfSl 7/1/2019 admin. FAPROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE16 TOTAL .

ICONTRACTED BUDGET 95,66360 1,003.566.00 1,000.00 09.680.00 . ■ 1,170,209.00' 1
' EXPECTED BUDGET
PREviduSLY OBLICATEO -0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00.

0.00
0.00

THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE v = V 060 . .  207;112.00 0.00 .  0.00 .  207,112.00 J
^ TO.TAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT AinxpRBEO TO OBLIGATE

0.00
95,663.00

207.112.00
796.474.00

■  0.00
1.000.00

0.00
69.960.00

207,1.12.00
963.097:00

SNHS
FIf«l 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE-16 TOTAL -

ICONTRACTED BUDGET • 163,777.00 1,718,"152.00 .  1.000.00 .84.220.00 - '  -1,967,14960. )
EXPECTED BUDGET
PREIAOUSLY O'BLIPATEO 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

■  0.00
.0.00 . .

[THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 354i 576.00 " 0.00 0.00 • '354,578.00 L I
TOTAL AVAILABLE TOlOSLIGATE
NOT AUTHORIZEO TO. OBUGATE

0.00
. •163,777.00

354.578.00
1,363:57460

0.00
1,000.00

0.00" •
64,220.00

3S4,578;0p
1.612,571.00

SCS
First 7/1/2019 AOMIN. fa PROGRAM ■  sb^s -ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

ICONTRACTED.BUOGET - y  63,635.00 879,501.00 .825.00 64.960.00 ■1,029.121.00 1
EXPECTEOBUDGET
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED . 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

"0.00
0.00

[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE r; .  .0.00 ; 161,504.00 0.00 . 0.00 . 181,504.00.1 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE.
NOT AUTHORIZED tO OBUGATE

0.00
'  83~;835.00.

181.504.00-
697,997.60

0.00
825.00

0.00
64,960.00

181,504.00.
847.617.00

CAPSC
First7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 ITOTAL

[CONTRACTED BUDGET ' ■  54,676.00' . 573,593.00 757.60 •  55.110.00r:- •-664,'136.60 > 1
EXPECTED BUDGET
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

"0.00
0.00

ITHISAPPROVAL TO.OBUGATE.-- •T~ - -0.00-- - 118,373.00 . 0.00 . 0.00. 118,373.00; 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
.NOT AUTHORIZEd TO OBLIGATE

0.00
54,676.00

118.373.00
455,220.00

0.00
757.60

0.00
55,110.00

118,373.00
'565,7.63.60

-TCCA
First 7A1/2D19. AOMIN. FA PROG RAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

jCONTRACTEO BUDGET .140,269.00 1.471,538.00 . 1,000.00 82.950.00 1695,76760. J
EXPECTED BUDGET
PREVIOUSLY OBUGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00
b.oo

[THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 ■ '  303,98460 .■ 0.00 0.00 303,084.00' 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBUGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE

•0.00
140,26960

303.984.00
1,187,554.00

0.00
. 1,000.00

0.00
62,950.00

303,984:00 • *
1.391,773.00

UHWAP2I01NHLWCS/4
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCGUNTABILrrY.

AND TRANSPARENCY ACT <FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountebilily and Transparency Aci (FFATA)- requires prime awardees of
individual TederaJ gr^is equol to'or greater than S2S,000'and awarded on' or after Ociober't, .2010, (o
report on daio related (o'executivecompehsatipnand associated first-tier sub-grams ;6f.S25,0G!6 or'rhofe.
If the ibitial awa/d is below 525,000 bursubscqucht;gfant modifications result in a total .award'equal to or
over S25,(^'. the oward is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements as of the dale of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 ̂Rtporiing Sulhcword and Sxeeuihv Compensation Informaiion)^.
ihe-New'Hampsfiire Oepenment of.Energy must report the following information for any sub-award or

'Contract aword-subjca to'lhc'FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Namedfcnilry
2) ̂ qunt of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for cohtracts/ CFDA progrem number for grants

Program source
6) Award (iile descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principal piace.-of p^drmance
9) Unique.identifierof the entity (UEI.#)
Ipj Tola) compcn.saiiop and narnes of (he top five executives if:

•a. .More than 8b%bf,arihual gross rtvxnues arc, from" the Federal goVcmfnchi arid those
fcyCTucs arc grcalcf than $25M annually, and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

TKme gram recipients must submit FFATA-requircd data by the end of (he rnomh.plus 50 .days in which
the award or award omendmeot is made.

The Contractor identifred in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to'comply with the provisions of
The .Federal .Funding AccoumabiLiy and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public 'Law 110-

252, and 2 CFR 'Part 170 {Reporting Su/yavmrd and Executive Compensation Information), and
frifther agrees to have the Contractor's represemaiive, as identified in Sections l.ll and 1.12. of .the
'Gerieral Provisioos; execute ihc..followirig Certification:

The belbw'namcd Contractor agrees (o provide.nee^d information as outlined above to the New
H^pshire Deparimcnt a-Energy and .to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accouht'abUti'y arid TirensQarency Act.

RhH\\GvA CPk")
(Cdntraclib^l^rcscntalive Signature) (Authorized Contractor ReprKcmolive Name A Title)

Tri-Couhty Community Action Program, Inc. ^
(Cbntractor.Naincj (Date)

ContfBcior loiuats v<T-

Daic2l2tij5LE
Page 1 of2
LIHNVAPCFDA«).568



NE^ HAMPSHIRE DEPARtMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORMA

As.lhc 'ConU^ctor idcniified in Scttlon 1,3 oflhc General Provisions, I certify that ihc responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. Thc-.Uniquc Entity Identifier (UEI) number for your'enlity is:

2. In-your business or organization's preceding complete fiscet year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of-your annual grossrevenue in. U.S. federal codtrecis, subcontracts, loans,
gnmts, sub-graots, and/or.cooperaiive agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more'in annual ̂ ss reyenucs
(kiiTi U.S. fMeral contracts, itibcontracts, loans, grants, sub-granis, and/or cooperative agreements?

YES

Kthe answer to ffZ above Is NO, stop here.

If the answer to nbove is YES, pleosc answer the following:

3. Does the public have access'to'information about the compensation of the executives in 'your.business
or orguizaUon lhrough periodic .repqru Tiled under sectipn 13(a) or 15(d) of (he Securities Exchange Act
of 1934.(15 U.S.e.78ifi(o), 78o(d))',or section 6104 of the Ihiemal Revenue Code of 1986?

^_N0 YES
\

If the Bpswer to #3 above (s YES, stop here.

If Che'QDSwer- to M above is NO, please answer the foliowing:

4. TKe'names and compensation of the fiyc most highJy compensated officers in your business or
organization arc as foitovy's;

Name:. Amount:

Name": Amount:

Nanic: Amount:

Name: . Amount;

Name: Acoount:

Conunctor tnuleU

Dale

P«gc2of2
LEHEAP.2I CFOA093.568



rRRTIFlCATE OF VOTES

(Corporate AuUiorlty) •

Sandy Alonzo j Board.Ghair of __Tri-Coumy.Comniuriity Aciion Pro^m, Inc.
(Name) ^ . (CoTwationntiflc)'

(Hereinafter ihc 'JCorptfrtiUbh"). a Nc>v'Hamps"hlre corporalion, hereby cenify lhat: (.l) 1 aralhe duly
iStaw) • • '

fleeted and;8clihg Board.GKairorihe.eorppraiion; (2) 1 roainlin and have custody and am familiar with the
■mjnuie'b^ics:df\thc Co/po"ratioii;' (3) I am dulyauthorircd to issue cenificaies with resect lo ihc/conicnts. of.sych
'book8 -f4')\bai the Board ofDirectori of tbc.Cdrporation Kave auihorized, on .^l3V aulhoniy

to'be in force and elTect-until 30. 2023.
(Contraci iermination date)

the*pcrsonCs) holding.thc below-listed posiiion(s) are authorized to execute and dcliver.on behalf of the
CorppraiioD any .contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services:

JMnne.Robillard Ch^f fi ltecuHvp QfTlOPf
CNiinc) (Posiiion)

Randall Pilotte gh'Cf FininPifll QfriPn
(Rosmon)

(5) Theraceling.bf.ihc'Board of Directors was'held in accordance with New Hampshire.
(Sutcoftncwppreiion) >

:law arid ihc.by-laws oif the eori»ratioh; and (6).S3id authorization lus not been modjfied, amended or rescinded
and continues in .full,force and feffcctlas^of.lhc date hereof.

IN 'WITNESS WHERECIF.- I liayc hereunto set my hand as the Board CItair of the corporation ih'is
day of, ^ ».202^.

state OF_Ncw Hampshire^
COUNTY OF' Coos_

hairBo

On this- day of 20221 ..before me, Christina Mprin. ^ .the
iinrifKign^ OfTicer. persoriolly ^Kared-Saridy Alonzo" who ackno.wlcdged her/hlmscIf to be
the Roflrd Chair of ^Tri'^Counly 'Community Action Pro^m, Inc. . a cofpbrali'pri.arid that shVhc
as'such Board Chair being authorized to do so. executed the foregoing instnimcnl for the puipbses
.thereih.dbdlained.'

IN WITNESS WHEREOF; I hcrcunio set my hand and ofTicial seal.

C

Noib^,BMdtTc/Ju'slice of the Peace
Commission Expiration Date: o



OomSJ^ EnVflQfM' tO: Me8340O-2A^p09:A9e4-ei4I^2S8E8

TO-COUNty COMMUNITY ACnON PROGRAM. INC.

)2FY22 Board Resolution: Resolution of the Corporation

Authority lo Sign

The Board of Directors ofTri County Community Action Propam, Inc. (the "Corporation-*)
takes the following-action:

Resolved,

That the Tri-Coiin'ty Community Action Program, Inc. CKief Executivc CDffjccr (CEO) Jwnne L.
Robillofd, or the Chief Financial OfFcer (CFO) Randall S. Pilone acting as a.designee of the

CEO; are hereby authorized on behalfofthis Coiporation tb.ehter into coninicis with the Federal
Government, State of h/ew Hampshire, and any other parties as deemed necessary and lo'.cxccutc
anyaod all documents,-'agreements and other instruments and amendments, revisions or
ihbdifications thereto, as may be.deemed necessary, desirable or appropriate for the'Corporati.on;

this'.autH'onzatioh being enforced and effective until June 30th, 2023.

Attest, the resolution adopted therein was duly authorized by the Board of Directors on May'

3lsi,2022.

nLc: SandyTftm"*""-
Tillc:"Board Chair

By.>
Name: George Sykes
Title; Treasurer



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

{.David M. Scanlan, Sicreiary of Siatcof ibe Slilc ofhiew Hampfhire. do hereby certify ihei TW-COUNTYCOMMUNrTY

ACTION PROOflAM, INC. CTRI-COUNTY CAP) b o New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporsiion rcgbiered to iraruaci business'in
New Hampshtre.on'.Moy 18', 1965..! ftmhercenifyihot'all fcea inddocumenu rcquiredby the Secretary of .State "i ofTicc have

.been rM.ei'vecl.and is .in gobd aianding as Car as thU office is concerned.

Business.10: OOlO

Ccnifitite.Numb«r:-0005774957

£%
A

o

%

IN teStlMONY WHEREOF;

I hcrciu sei myihand and cause to be sfTcied'

the Seal of.ihe'Stste of New Hamp^ire,

this lOthdaydf M.ay A.D'. 2022.

Oavid.M. Scanlan

Secrciflryof'Suiie



/^C^RCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE MTl wwwrmT)'

'M/2Vn33

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION QNIT AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER; THIS

CERTIFICATE OOES'NOT APEIRMATTVEIY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE'COVERAOe AFFOROEO BTTHS POUCIES
BELOW. TX1S CERTIFiCATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTrTUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INiSURERIS). AUTMOfilZEO
REPRe8ENfATiyiEOR\PRpD«>CCR.ANbTH6CeRTtFICATBHOL0eiL" ... . . .
IMPORTANT If Iha.caillflcatt hojdaV U an ADOfnONALMSURED, lha peltcyfUs) muat hava AOO/TIONAL INSURED prev^lona or ba tndonad. .,
(f SUBA.OOA^N.iS WAIVED,'iublaet te.tita'.larma a,nd condlUena'of (ha p^ley, cartaln poUctaa may requira an andora'amanl. A autamani on.
tiila cWEftiutadM neleenftr HshM lb iha caritflcala li^ar In'ltau of auefiandaraaniaAtfi)..

MOOUCCR.

FIAVCreai Mumrca

It 00 Elm Svaal

Mwdiesw . NK 03101

AAttaaNicttn

(M3)«W331

m«hch;ctmOo9S«a9«ncy.eom

aOVRtftfll APKMOIMO CO««lUOt MAKI

wMua i: PM>30alphla ttoamMty Im Co 1S09S- '

anuns

Tii-C«««ay'Con«nuAir|rAcSen P^mm.,lm ?

30ExdiBrOB'Si^

Be^ NH 03370

pnufuna: OanOa Si«a,HaaOi Cm* and riMnan Santeaa 5«l>>

MUKUe : *

tmmia'o;

wavMHai

.

'C0VERA0E9 CPrriFfCATE NUM8ER: •• W-23 REVISION NUMBER;

THS IS TO CEATrr THAT TTfC-POCCCS Of MSURAMCS USTED OSlOW HAVE SEEN ISSUED TO THE IHSUREO NAMED ABOVE FOR T>C POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOfWTTHSTANOtNO'ANY REQUIREMEKT. TERM OR CbHOfnON OF ANY CONTRACT OA OTHER OOCUMENT WITH RC&PCCT TO WHICH THtS
QfiRTV'lCATE MAY OS ISSUED OR MAY>CRTAW. THE MSURANCS AFFORDED BY POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREM IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS. "
EXCLUSIONS ju« CONDiriONS'OF SUCH POLICCS.-LIMITS ShOWH MAY HAVE BCEN.REOUCEO BY PMO CLAIMS!

.. . TYFioremMANca FOLKYHWan ini.'.v.v.n n-i.i.*. .vsi LODTl- 1

A

X coaamcML'etK^iUAaam

•  OCCUR

PWK2.433324 07/0113022

1

07/01/2023
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—
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1 100,000

•

MCO Cx'f (Am iM Hnani ,-.5.000

1 FtasONAi a Aow auuaw I 1.000.000

lot'inAOOi>ea*T»La*TAFMjtsFCR: ocMeRM.A0i3MaATii ' i :!,opo.ooo_

FOLCY Q ̂ Q LOC
OtMUl;- 1

■FFOOUCTl .'CCMAQFAOO 1 3.000.000'
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A-
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>HPXa43333l 07/01/3022

1

07X11/2033
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M««0
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AUTOS
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' aooAY MAPrr (Fi^ mmm) 1
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1

A

moMUAUAa

ncuauAB'
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[ CVWSAIM* PHUeS3ISSS 07/01/3033 07X11/3033
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X AOCRECAfe i 2,000.000

eeo i Xl ASTtHTCN a 1 •» V

.8.

WORKM COMFClOATIOH
AM eunoTtRF UMurr ^y,„
ANrPROPRrrORiNRTMCiMiECi^^ r:n
OFFCCRweiiWR enauofo? "
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MIA H'CNS303200pOOSB {3a.)NH 01/01/3032 01/01/3033

Xi;f^nirt r .

tLEACHACCBCMT , 1.000.000

tLOeCASE .tACMFlOYee ^ 1.000.000'

EX. OatASt .FOlCY LFNT .1.000.000

I
•

oaacvnoMoaaPOUTnMaiLOCATioHi'ivoucLUiMOooiii.AaaiiMiAMMni

CERTVICATE HOLDER 'CANCELLATCN

'IM Oapaitmani ol Enaryy
2j SquOi Fnyi St. 8<a: lO;

.  SHOULD ANY Of IKE ABOVE OCSCIUBCO POLCU BE CANCELLEO.BEFOftfi
THE EXPUUnON DATE THEREOF. ItOTICe nUL BE OEUVEAEO IN
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•
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Financial Statements

tRI-COUNTV CdltflMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPOiRtS
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Leone. .
McDonnm
& Roberts

Tothe Boardof Oiredors.of pvof^ONAi.ASsnoim'*
Tri-County Community. Actioh.Prdgram. (nc. and Affiliate a:KTiFiEDWBUCAaouffrANTS
Seriih, New Hampshire vroinWR0"*Kpimj C0N^T

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

DOVT.R.vOWCORI)
STKATKAM

Report oh'thB PinanelBl Sisiemfints
•We have audited the! accbrripanying cons.oli.dated financial, statements of Tri-County Community'
Abtlon Program, inc.-.and. Affiliate <New Hampshire nonprofit org.anizetions), which comprise the
.consolidated' .statements of financial position ias of June' 30. 2021 and 2020. the re.tated
coriVolidated •statements o.f functional expenses 'and cash fioWs .for the years' then ended, the
related cofVs.diidat.ed'sta.terne.nt of activities for the year ended June 30. 2021 an'd the related
notes to the cbnsolidated financial statements.

Management's ResponslbUity for the Financial Ststemenis
Managehienti Is responsible, for the preparation and fair pfesentatiori of these consolidated
finari'cia! statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes.the design, irnple.rh.entalion, and malnleriance of internal control
relevant to the" preparation arid fair presehtaiibn of .cbnsolidaied financial, statements that are
free from material rnisstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors'Responsibility • w ^
Our responsibility is'to express an opinion on thsse .consolidated fina.ncial staternents based on
our a'ydil. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United'S.tates,.of .America and the standards applicable to fihandal audits-.contained in
Govemrne'rit Auditing Sfendahis.-issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards, require: that, we plari and perform' the iaudit to obtain reasonable assurarice about
whether the .consolidated .financial; statements are free from material rnlss.tatement.

An audit involves performing' proce.dures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures In the cbnsolidated fl.nanciai staternents. The procedures,'selected vdepeW. on the
auditors' judgementj including the aissessment of'the risks of material rnisstatement of the
.consolidated firtan.cial .staternents, whether due to fraud Or error. In makrng tho.se risk-
assessments. the-auditor .considers internal control, relevant to the eritily's preparation and fair-
presentation of the consolidatied fina.ncial state.ments in order to design audit procedures'thai
are. appropriate in the drcunistances. but hot for the-purpose of expre.ssing an .opinion on the
dffectiyeness o"f the entity'.s*internal control. Accordingly, we express no sudi opinion. An au.d|l
^also inciCides evaluating the appropriateness of accounting pblicles used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting eslimate,s made by rn.anagemenl, -as well as
evaluating the overall preseritatiori of Ihe consolidated fi'nancial staternents.

■We,believe that the audit .evjderice we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate .to"; provide a-
basls for our audit opinion.



Opinion
In" .bur •bpjrilphV the consolidated financial statements referred to above present falrty. in ell'
material respect's.. tbe cbhsdi'd8ted finahctai, position oi Tri-County Gommunlty Action Program.
Inc; and Affiliate as. of June 30. 2021 and 2020, and its .consolidated cash flovys for the years,
^then endwi. and.ihe changesMn'ils net asset's .for the year ended June 30; 2021, fri accwdancje
with accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We hfave' previously audited' Tri-County Commuriity Acliori Program. Inc. artd Affiliate's 2020
consolidated financial" s.taternents; and we expressed an- unmodified audit opinion bn. those
.cortsolidated financial stalemerifs 'in our report dated October -2.% 2020. In our opinlbn., the
summarized comparative information, presented herein as .of-and for the year ended June 30,.
2020. Is consistent, In all material, respects, with.the audited consolidated financial statements-
from which It has beer> derived;

Other Information
Our audit was .conducted for the purpb'se of formirtg an opinion on the 'consolidated financial
stalement.s ̂ as a whole. The accdmpan'yirig schedule of expenditures of federal .awards, as
r^uire.d :by. title 2 U.S. 'Code- of Federai Regulations (CFR) Part 2.00. Uniform Administratiye.
Raquimrhents. post P/incipies; and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, Is presented .for
purpo^'s of additional analysis .and Is not a required part. of. the- consolidated .financial,
statements, .Such- information is the responsibility of managemeril and was derived-from land
relales dirediy to (he underlying accounting and other records used to prepare j^e consoiid.ated,
financiarstaiemerits. the'information'has been sutjjected to the auditing procedures applie.d in
the audit of the consolidated finaricial statements and certain additional procedures, including
cprnparing and reconcilirig such Informatloo directly to the underlying -accounting .and other
records -.used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated Tinancial'
statements' themselves, and,.other additional procedures in accbrdarice with auditing stjand.ards.
gehefally-'accepted'in the Uriited Stales .of America. In our opinion, the Iriformatibri is fairly,
stated, in all material respects. In.relation to the consolidated financial stalemerils as a'whole.

.Qther Reporting Required by Govemmenf Auditing Standards
In accordance -with Gd'^erhment Auditmg Standards, we have also issued our report .dat'e'd
October 28. 2020, on-buf cori^lderalion of Tri-Cour)ty .Community Action Program,. Inci's iritemal
conjrol oyer financial repprting-and on our tests of its compliance with ce.riain provisions of law's,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose o.f tha.l report Is to
describe' the scope of pur testing of internal control over .finaricial reporting and compiiarjce and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opi.nion on the effeciivenass -of Tri-County
.Co.rnmunlty Action Prograrri, Inc.'s intemal control over financial reporting or. on compliance.
That report is, an integral, part of an audit performed in accordance with Government AudiUng
Sta'ndaids In corisiderirtg Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s internal coribpl over
financial reporting and ;cbmpilance.

November 19. 2021
North Conway, New Hampshire



■TRi:(^QUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROQRAM. INfc. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATeO STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSfTION
JUNE3Q. 2021 AND 2020

ASSETS

CURRENT-ASSETS
Cash and oquivalents
RMtricied'casN/duefdianship Services Program
/Recounts recaiva.blQ;
Property held for .sale
Pladges.recaiya.ble . .
tnyentocies
Prepaid expenses

Tola) Current assets

RRpPERTY
Property and equipment
Less a.ccumulatod.depreciation

^operty. net

OTHER ASSETS
Resirlcled cash

TOTAL ASSETS

LIAfilLtTIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT llABILITlES(
Current portion'of long term debt

' Current poriion of capital lease obligations
Accounts payabla
-Accrued comperualed absences
.Accrued salahas
■Accrued expends
Rafundabi.e.acNances

»  Pth'er-liablllUes'

Total current liabilities

LbNG'TERMDEBT
L(^ ierm debt/riet of current pprtlori

folat iiat»Iilies

NET ASSETS
Withoift dor?orrestrictions

.  ' Wlih. donor ^s^ctions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

,2021 ■2020

S  3.237,032 '$ 2.257.081
i;3i7.83"9 . 796,937
1.617.249 1,322.852

. 47,000
2-16.423. •307.017
52,985 102,430
S3 594 77.882

6.495.122 4.911.199

12.917.935 12.344.865
.  (5.050.185) (5.601.944)

7.067.75O 6,742.881

439.822 384:711

S 14.002.694 .S 12.03a.771

$  129,155 S  437,843
. .3,554

4.303- 180.427
233.907 243.779
•383,435 ■49,053
266.595 137.304.
324,140 181.463.

1.400.645 850.982

2.742.180 2.084.411

4.577,505 4:792.557

7.319.68'5 6.876.088

6.199,624 4,565.253
483.385 598.550

6.683.009 5.161.803

S 14.062.694 $ 12,038,771

SeANotes tdConsoiidatod Financial Statements
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TPt^nUMTY rOMMIlWITV ACTIOM PROQff AM INC ANQ APFtUATg.

CONSOCbATED CTATEWENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR'-THE YEAR'ENOED JU^ 30. 2021

'REVENUES AND OTHER SURPORT
Gra^r^.i^^antQdii
Proof8m]fundino
UBity progmms
IrvWnd cpnirtbutions

Pontrfbytlooi
Fund^liir^
Rtnuib^pm

Acamt
<Losi)9»{n;pn dtpoulofptppMy
Lets on.MHl't down of prepeny NM for uto'
Othor rovonue'

Total r^anuca end.oCisrwpperf

NET ASSefS REL^SeO FROM RESTRICTIONS

Total rovenuof. otiiar support, ar^

not BSMis rdeea^ from raatriciibna

FUNCTIONi^ EXPENDS
ProgramiSerncas:

Agency Fund
Head-Stan.

Guvdle'nshlp

Trensp^M^'
vW^r
WorVfoba .Oovoippmani
CenotI County O^t^
Support Caniar '
Homaiasa
^arsyaiwl Communby Oevelopmant
Eldv'

Hous^ Sarv'ca'a

Total program.aeNicn

Supporting.'XctiviUea:.
Ganeral and admlnlstni^a
Fttf^lsing

TbtaliBuppoitlr^.acUviliaa

Totsi funcOonal aigansat

CHANCE m NET ASSETS

NET asset's, eEGINNING 'OF VEAR

NET assets. END OF YEAR

WilMut Obnor
RtVtilctlons

With Oonor

Rei'trtcllona
2021

Total

2020

Total

S  te.23S.3S4 -

i.l77.«3T
2.659.293

3S4.5S0

4^.340.
1.602

664.169

SM
(27.206)

13.364

i  415.056 S  '18.7H\4V6
1.177.OT7'
2.659,293
364;S60
462.340,
•1.M2

-.664.109'
■ ~'888
(27.298)

1S'3fi4

> U.909.313
1;084;133
1.923.653;
455.626

;?26:2t$-
32;'S44

63S;559
■ 023

257.717

(2S5.4B2)

23.633.439 415:056 24.040.465^ 19.374.770

626221 (526.221) .

24.101.660 (113.165). 24.04B;46'5 •19.374.770

1.017.660
2.656.419
760.053

870.076
96.617

40.175

669.641

356.359

4.760.909

0.541,527
.1.192.453

.  . -162.010

•

1.017.660
2,856,^16
7eo:o53
87'6.678'
96.617

40.175

669.641

356:359"
4;760:909'

. e;54TS27-.
1,192:453
192.010'

1,047.356
■2.769.065

769.597
091.504
'04.945

■

653.610,
5S6;244
600.146

7.624.201
1.149.136'
' 220.900

21.354.301

"

21:354.301 •. -17:224,926

1.172.988

' t

1,172.968 1,062:613
2.886

1.172.986 1 172.'968 . 1.065.493

22 527 289 22.527,269 16.290.413

1.634.371 (113.165) 1.521.206 1.084'.3S7

4:565.253 596.550 6.101 803 4.077.449

5  6.199S24 5  483.385 $  6.663,009 S 6.l8f.806

Saa Notaa to Conioiidalad Flnancbl Statements
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TRI-CQU^CQMMUklTYACTtQN PROGRAM. tNC. AND AFFfUATg.

■consomdAteo statements of cash flows
FOR THE-YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 ANO 2Q2Q

CASH FLOyyS FROM OPERATING ACTrVITtES
Change in nol aasets
AdiusUT^b'to reeor^M change'ln net aneb'to
Ml cash provided byoperetlng edi^ties:-

Depi^claUon er^ emonlutlon
Co$9;(goin) oh ^p>^l bf.p/opo/ty

<inc/eu'a) decreesa in useb':
Araunb receivaM
pi^es recahr^a'
Inyantoriaa
pirapsid e;Q>cfbe3

inereaM (dacroasa) IniiobiUiles:
Accmii^ peysbib'
Accnjcd'contpensated absancas
•/^icrued ealates
Accrued axpensas
Relundade a^anoes.
OthariebKities

NET CASH PRODDED BY OPERATiNG ACTIVITieS

CASHFLOWS FROM.IWESTINO ACTIVTriES
Procaeda from dbposal of property
Purchesea ol property ohd oputproenl

NET CASK USED IN INVESTiNG ACtlVrTlES

■CASH FLOWS FROM RACING ACTIVITIES
Ropayment on long^arm.debl
R<!P«yrneiit.ph a^tal.Mraip dbllgatlqns

NET CASH .ijSEO IN FINANCING ACTiyiTIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH,AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH'ANp RESTRICTED CASH, END OF.YEAR

SUPf>LEMENTAL OlSCLOSURE.OF CASH FLOW
(NFpRMATION:-

Ceah paid during the year for.
Intsrast

2021

$  1.521.206

4te.O40
27.286

(294.397)

2020

.V.084.357

•436.197
"(2.225).

(46.769)
90.594 (75.656).
49.445 (16.'S4'4)
24.268 (43.645)

(176.124) (41,144)
(9.872) •39.700

334.376 (161.693)
129.291 47.780
•142.677 (15,694)
549.683 252,787

2.638.475 1.'4S4'.6S1

25.000 4.495
(760,217) .  127171

•1755.217) 1269.216)

(523.740) (145.684)'
(3.554) •(4.671)

(527.204) (150.555)

r.555.984 ' 1;b35.660

3.438.729 2:403.846

$  4.094.693 S 3.438:729

S  l'35.643 >' • 131.679

Saa Nplaa to Conadlidatad Financial Siatomonta
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Tpi-CQUNTY'cbM'lVIUNITVACTIQR

NOTES TO. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30.2021 AND 2020

N0TE1. ORGANIZATlbN AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

■Qfa'anlzatloni and Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of TrkCounfy-
Opmmunlty-Action .Pfpgram, Inc. arid its afifiliate, ■Cornerstorie. Housing North, .Inc;.
The' two organizations are consolidated because Tri-Cdunty Community .Actjpo.
Program, Ino controls'100% of the votln'g power of Cornerstone. Housing, North, Inc.
All significant intercompany ilerps and transactions have bee'h eliminiated from the
basic .financial .siatements.. Tri-Coun'ty Gornmunjty Action Program.. Inc. (the
Ofpanizaiibn) is 'a" New Hampshire non-profit aCorporation that operates a wide:
variety of community service prbgrarns which" are funded primarily thrpugh grants or
contracts from various federal, state, and. local agencies; Cpmerstorie Housing
North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is a New Harnpshire nonprofit cprpdratibn that was
iricoiri.orated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acqUisitiopv.
constructipn and operation of community-based housing for the elderly.

Nature of activities
The Organization's programs consist of the following;

Aaehcv
tri-Gounty CAP Administration provides .central program management
support and. oversight lo the brgahrzation's many indivj.dual 'programs.
This includes planning and budget development., bookkeeping. ;and
-accQuntihg, payroll'and HR services, legal and'audit services. IT suppprt,-
management support, financial support and central policy developmerit.

Tri-Gounty CAP Administratibn. Is the liaison between Tfi-Cou.nly'
Community Action. Program. Inc.'S: Board of Directors arid Its prograrris,
ensuring that programs comply with agreerherits ma'de by .the Board to-
funding SQurces and vendors.

Other .responsibilities Include' the management :and ailpcaiion of .funding
received, through a Corhmunity Services .Block Grarjt, as m\\ as
management of the Organization's real estate property.

Head Start
Head Start-provides comprehensive services to low-incortie children. .and
■their familjes.. Head Start supports children's growth and deyelpRrnent' in a
positive learning e'nvironrinent through a variety '.of activities as well :as;
providing .'services, which include in addition to 'early learning, health 'and
family well-beirig. All children receive, health and development scfeenlri'gs,

;  nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents arid
families are suppo.rt.ed, in achieving their own goals, such as housing
stability.'Continued education, and financial stability.

8



TRl-CQUMTY COMMUNITY ACTI^

NOTEStO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

Programs support and. strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's
prirhary educator. Head Start staff, work as^partners with parents to identify
and-provide individualized .activities that support their child's growth, and
deyelppmep.t.

TH-County Xomrtiunity Action Head Sla.rt. .serves appro;j;imately 250
chtldr.eh In Carroll. Coos & Graftoh counties in 9 locations with 13 wriier-

■ based c/assr.ooms and 1 home-based option.

Guardianship

The prganizatipn's Guardianship prograrri provides advocacy and guardian
services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire ■ residents
(developnrie.ntally disabled, chronically rnentaljy ill, traumatic brain injury,
and the elderly suffering fronh Alzheimer's, derhentla,' and muitipie medical
IssuGis) who" need a guardian and who have no family rnember or friend^
wjlllng...a.,ble, or suitable'to serve In that capacity. This program ̂ rves over
400 ' individuals. Additional services include, consetVatorship,
representative payee-ship, federal fiduciary servlc.es, benefi.t rnanagement
.seryipe.s and private probate accoupting'services.

)

Transportation

The Orgahizatlon's transit program provides" various, transportation
services: public bus routes, door-lb-door service by request, long .distarice
medjcai travel to rn.edica.l facilities outside' pur regular service 'a'fea, and
special itrips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are Jpcaled outside the regular service area. The Organization's fleet of 17
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers trahspbflatlon options to'Ih'e .elderly
and disabied, as well as to tbe general public.

Vofunteer.

The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) rnaintalns
a minimum igrgup of 393 vpluriteers, ages 55 and older, of which 225
.actively served during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences, and time with oyer 60! local. npn.-prpfiV-and
public agencies throughout Coos County- that depend on volunteer
assistance.to meet the needs of their constituents. Gur volunteers, donate
ove.r 28'O'Od hP.yrs yearly.

Workforce Development

The Qrganlzalipn is. assisting transitional and displaced wpft<ers as they
prepare for new jobs, arid also assisting cuite'ntly-erhployed workers to
gaihl the skills required for better jobs.



im-gftWNTT TOMWtiN.ITY APTIPN PRQQRAM. INP. ANP Afmm

^  ' NOTES.TO CONSOLIDATED FiNlANdAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE-aO. 2021 AND 2020

The Organiz.alion is helping (p implement New Harnpshlre's Unified. State
Plan for Workforce Development, in line with the federal Workforce
.investment. Act. Workforce training programs, with training facilities' in
three tpwris. provide temporary assistance for needy farnil.ies (TANF)
recipients with 20-30 hoUrs per week of training in the areas of employment,
skills, cornpute.r .skills, and business experience, and .atsp place
participatir>g TANF.recipients in community-based work'experience sites.

Carroli. County Dental
Tarnvyorth D.ental Center (the Center) offers, slate of the art ijuali^ .oral
healthcare to uninsured families and indlv.iduals. The- Center offers a -full
•array, of services,including preyentative, restorative, and oral, surgery. .The
.Center ac.c.epts m.ost dental Insurances, slate insurances, .and. offers a
sliding fee scale based oh income ratio to federal, poverty .guidelines-.-The
school-based prpjecjt.of the Center has undergone modifications neoejssary,.
due.to thO. pandemic. 9 outreach schools within the vicinity .of. Itia Center
will be made. .Education, treatments, and referrals will be made available'.

Support Center

The Organjzatlon'.s Support Center at Burch.House provides direct service
.and shelter to victims and survivors of domes.tic and sexual viplerice and
stalking in Northern .Grafton County. Support Center services are
accessible :24 hours a day. 365 foays a year. They include: crisis.
Ihteivehtidri: supportive counseling"; court, hospital and policy advocacy
and accompaoimeht; emergency shelter; support groups; community
education and outreach; viptjence prevention programs for. students;,
inforriiation. referrals arid assistance accessing other cbrhmuhity
resources^.

Hometess

Homeless services include an outreach intervention and prevehiion project
that' stnyes to .prevent individuals and families frprn becoming hpnie.lessi,
and.assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable h'ousing..The'
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless cjiisnts..

The Orgariization also provides some housing rehabilitation sen/ices to
help preserve older housing stock.
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TRI.r.nilNTY ROWIWIllNITY ACTION PRbflRAM. INC. AND AFFIL lATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
\  FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

Energy Assistance and Outreach

Energy Assistance Services provide fuel, and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors dr a discouni on the client's bill. Community Contact'
sites allow local .participants access to energy assistance programs and
piher emergency services, the .offices provide information to the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other'
programs available through other organizations In thacommuhl'ty.

Low'Intome Weatherizatlon

The- NH weatherizatlon program helps low-lncomo. families', elderly,
disabled., small children and individuals lovvef 'their' horhe energy costs;
increase their health, safely, and comfort; and'improve the, quality ofliving
.while improving housing slock in co.mmuniti.es around' the" sla.te utilizing
energy cost, saving, health and safety and carbon lovvering measures. The"
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs.

Elder

The.Organization's elder program provides senior meals in 14.cornmunity
dining .sites, home delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
honriet)ound elderly, and senior nutrition educatior} -and re;late.d
programming. Th.e Coos County ServiceLInk Aging &• Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling. Medicare .counseling.
Medicald assistance, long-term care counseling services, and caregiyer
supports.

Housing Services

Cornereione. Housing North. InC; (Cdfnersjorie) is subject Id a Project
Rental Assistance Contract (PRAC) with the United States peparimerit* of
Housing and U.rbah Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their
rental ihcprne Is received from HUD.

Cornerstone, includes a 12-unit apartment complex in Berlin, New
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section.202 of the National.
Housing Act and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges
and operating rpethods.

11



AND AFFILIATE

NOTES to eONSOLIDATEO. FINANCIAL.STATEMENTS
EOR THE YEARSENDED JUNE 30. 20i21 AND 2020

Gornerstone has a S^tion 202 Capital Advance. Under guidelines
established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (Jriiform
Guidance, Title' 2 U.S. Code of Federal RegulatiOris (Cf^R). part 200,
■Unifonn Administrative Requirerrients, Cost Principles and .Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capita! Advance is
considered to be a major program. A separate audit .of Cornerstone's
corhpliance with Its major federal program in accordance with :auditihg
standards -generally accepted In the United State's of Arriefica; the
staridards applicable to financial audits contained in GoVernnient Auditing
Standards, iss.ued 'by the CSmplroiler General of the United Slates; and .the
audit requirerhents of Title 2 of US. Code of Federal Regulations part 200,
.Uniform Administrative: Requirements,_ Cost Principle's arid j A.udit
Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). An unmodified
opiniori was Issued.

Method of accounting
The. corisblidated financial statements of Tn-Counly Community Action Program,
inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting In accordance .witti
accounting principles gerierally accepted in the United States, of Am'erlcd, as
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
.Standards .Codification (ASC). Under this basis,.feveriue, other than contributip.ns,
arid expenses ;are reported when iricurred vyithoul regard to the, dale of receipt or
payment of cash.

Basis of presentation
The: financial statements of the Organization have been" prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally.-accepted accounting principles. {US GAAP), whjch require the-
Origanization .to re'pod information regarding its financial position and a'ctl.vities
according to the fojipwing net a^et classificatlons:

Neia'ssets without donor restrictions Include net assets that are not subject
to any donor-imposed restrictions arid may be expended for any purpose in
performing'ihe primary objectives of the Organization. These net assdts may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and board of
directors.

. 'Net.assets with donor restrictions Include net assets subject to slipulqtipns
irnposed by donors , arid grantors. Some donor restrictions .are temporary in
nature: those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of tii:ne. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in naturp, whereby ).he
donor has stipulated the funds beimaintained in perpetuity.

The Organization has net ass.ets with donor restrictions of $483,385 and $59'6.55p.
at June 30,. 2021 arid.2b20, respectively. See Note 13. .
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Jffl.ffpUNtY CQf^^MMNITY ACTION PROGRAM.

NOTES TO CONSbUDATEO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30: 2021 AND 2020

Contributibns

Oontributions-received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net
assets 'With* donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature, of any
donor-imposed restrictions. Support that; is restricted is reported as. an Increase in
net ass.eis withdut ddridr restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period
In which the contribution 'is recognized, All other donor restricted cdritributibns .are
reported as net assets with donor restrlclionsr depending on the nature .of ;the.
fbstrictidri., When a restriction expires (that is. when a stipulated time, restriction
ends or purppse restriction is accomplished), net assets with .donor restrictions.are
recJassified to net assets without d.pnor restrictions and reported In the statement of
aciiyities as net assets released from restrictions.

Accounts Receivable

Acc.o.unts receivable are slated at the amourit management expects to collect fronn.
balances outslariding at year-end. Most of the receivables are ampuhts due from
federal arid state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
.expendi.tures m.ad.e under sjpecific grants or contracts. A portion pf the .accounts
rbcfeivable'balance, represents amounts due frorn patients at Carroll County Dental
prograrn. Past due receivables are written off at management's disaetion using the
direct write off method":This is not considered a departure from accouri.ting principles
genBraiiy accepted In the. United State because the effects of the direct write off
method approximate those of the allowance rfiethod. f^anagement selects accounts
to be written "off after analyzing pasV paymerit history, the age of the accounts
receivable, and collection rates for receivables with simiiar characteristics, such a.s
lerigth of lime .put'stbnding. The Organization does not charge interest on
butstaridihg accounts receivable.

Probertv and Depreciation

ACguisi^ions.of buildings, equipment, and.improveinents in excess of $5,000. and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments, that materially prplorig tfie
useful lives oTassets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and imprbvements are
stated at .cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Oepreciajio.n exp.ense rel.ated to assets used solely by an Individual program is
. charge^ directly to the related program. Depreciation .expense for as.sets usep by

rridre th'an one program is charged to the program based upon a square footage or
pther.sirni.lar allocation.

Depreciation expense related to administrative assets is included in the indirect cost
pool :and charged lb the programs in accordance' with the iridire.ct cp.st, plap,.
f^^airiteriance a'nd.Tepairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to'.expense.as In.curf.ed.
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TRI^dUNTY COMMUNITY ACtlbfiJ PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAf^S ENDED JUNE 30.2021 AND 2020

Estimated useful livesiare as follows;

Buildings and improvements 20 to" 40' years.
Vehicles. 5 to 8..5 yea.rs
Furniture and equipment 5to15y6aiS

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy

Cornerstone, Housing North, Inc/s rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Department of Housing and Urban Oeveloprneht. Rental increases are prohibited
without such approval, the clients are charged rent equal to .30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Departrnent of Housing and Urban Deyelppmertt.
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of' Housing arid Urban

' Deyeloprnent "for the" difference between the .allowed rents' and, .the arnounts
received frpnn the clients.

Refundable Advances
Grarits received in advance are recorded as refundable advances artd recognized
as revenue in; the penod In which the related services or ;exp6nditures are
performed or incuired.. Funds received in advance o.f-granlpr conditlQns b.elng-met
aggregated ,$324-140 arid $181,463 as of June 30. 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Nonprofit tax-status

The •Organization is a not-for-profit S^ciion 501(c)(3) organization in accordance
with the.inlemal Revenue Code. It has been classified as an organization that is not

■a private foundation underthe Internal Revenue'Code and qualifies for a charitable
contnbuiipn deduction for. donors. The .Organization fijes information .returns in the"
United .Slates. The -OrganiMtion's Federal Form 990 (Return of Orgariizatldh
Exerript from incpfne tax), is subject to examination by the IfRS., gerierally for three
years after it.is Ttled.

The Organization follows FASB ASC 7.40, Acc'ountmg for Income- Taxes, which
clarifies the; accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a rccpgriilion
cthreshold and measurerrient attribute for financial statement recognition and
measurement ;of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The
Organization does not b.eileve they have taken uncertain tax positions, therefore, a
liabili^ for inco'rrie taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has hot been
recognized.

Comersldne Housing North, Inc. is exempt from income taxes .under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Internal Revepup, Service has
deteftriihed Ihe Organizatlori to be other thah a private fbuhdatioh .within the
meaning of Section 50.9(8).
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Tpi-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM:

WOTES TO COKISOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30/2021 ANP 2020

Retirement-Plan

The Organization im.aihtaihs a tax-sheltere^d annuity plan under the proyisipns of
Section 403(b) of, the internal Revenue Code, At! employees ̂ are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee
may "elect salary reduction agreement contributions. In accordance witti lirn.its
allowed in the IrStemal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Ofganiza.tiofi's.artnual discretion. In January 2013, employer contribution:payments
ceased, thereifpre as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, there were no discretionary,
contributions recorded. Further informatibri can be obtained from the
Organization's 403(0) audited financial statements.

Donated services and goods
Contrlb.iitions Of "donated services that create or enhance nonrfinahcial assets or
that require specialized skills and would tv^ically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values iri the period recejyed..

Contributed npncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If
donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are .recorded
as net assets, \yith donor restriciions. In the absence of such stipuialipns.
coritributipns of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor
restrictions.

Donated property and equipment

Donations of property and equiprnent are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donon has restricted the donated asset lo a. specific
purpose. Assets donated wjlh explicil restriciions regarding their use and
cphlributions of cash that rtiust be. used to .acquire property and .equipment are
reported as net assets With donor restrictions. Absenl donor stipulatiOhsjregafding
ho.w long., those dorialed assets must be maintained. Ihe Orga.rijzajlon reports
.expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired a.ssets are placed ;in
service as Instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies net assets with
donor reslrictlons to net assets without donor restrictions at that time..
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tri:gqunty community action program, inc. anp affiliate^

r^QTE5 TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ̂NDED JUNE 30..2021 AND 2020

Promises to Give

Conditional promises "to,give are not recognized in the financial statements until the
conditions are subslahtially met. Uncoridilional promises to give that areexp.ected
to be .coHe"cled within .one year are recorded at the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give thai are expected to be collected In more than one
.year are recorded at'fair value, which Js measured .as, the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted Interest rates applicable to. the years in which the promis.e.s are recel.ved.
Amortization of the d'iscoun.ts is included Iri contributibn revenue.. In .the absence of
donor stipulations .to the contrary. promises with payments due in future periods are
restricted Id Use aiflef the; due date. Promises that remain uricollected m'ore .than
one- year after their due dates are written off unless the donors indicate jthaf
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expire.s, net assets with donor
restrictibhs "are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions. There werd, no
unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than .one
year at June 30, 2021 and 2020.

As of .June 30. 2021.and 2020, there were promises to give, that were atisent of
donor stipulations, bui restricted In regards to timing, and lherefore classifiecl[as.het
assets with dpnor restrictions in the amount of $216,423 and $307,0.17;
respeclivdiy. this amount is Included in grants and contracts on the Consolidated
Statement of Activities.

Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements in confbmnity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
esiimatds aind assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the, financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Accounting Standards.Codification No, 825 (ASC 825), Disctosures of Fair Value of
Financial Instnimehts, requires the Organization to disclose fair values of its
financial instnjmenls. The carrying amount of the Organization's -financial
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, .approxirhate fair value because of the short-term rnaturity of .those
instruments.

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing .the various programs and other activities have been
summarized .on a fu.nctional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs hbve been afecated among the program services and supportihg activities
benefited.
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TRI-C'qUNTV COMMUNITY ACTO^ PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE:

Notes tCj CdNSbLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

ProQrBm salaries and related expenses are allocated to the various

programs "and supporting services based on actual or estimated time
-employees sp.end on each function as reported on a timesheet.

Workers Compen'sation expanses are charged to .each prpgrarn based upon
Ihe •classification of each employee and allocated to th'e''various: program
based .upbri. the tim'e employees spend on .each function as npte.d above.

■Psiid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is ailocaled to each pr:pgrarn as a
percentage'of total salaries.

Fringe 'Beheftts. are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These .expenses
includ.e employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health- and dental
insurance and'unempioymenl, compensation. The pooi is allocated to each
prdgram.based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program t)ased .upori specific
assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation expense On the
?staterhehts of functional expenses.

Other occupancy exbenses are applicable to: assets .which are :used by
niultiple programs. Buildings are primarily-charged to the benefiting prograrri
based' upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a building include
depreciation,, insurance, utilities, building rnairitenance, etc. These costs are
reported .as sp'ace.cOsts on the statements, of functional expenses.

insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage; 'building liability insurance, is allocated to programs tpased on 'Square
fp.o.tage of, th.e buildings; and insurance for furniture and equipment is allocated
to programs using' the book basis of the insured assets.

The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect bos! .Pool, and
are .allocated to each prograrh based upon a percentage of program expenses:
The. expenses include items such as administrative salaries, general liability
Insurance., admlhistrative travel,, professional fee's, -and other expenses -which
cannot be specifically identified and charged to a program.
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TRUnoUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
FOR THE years ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

The Organizatiori submils an indirect cos! rate proposal for the paid leave; fringe
benefits and other ;indirect costs to the IJ.S. Deparlmenl of Health arid. Human
Se.rvices. The praposal-,-effective for the fiscal year beginning July. 1,.2020, received
provisional Approval and is effective, until amended, at a rate of ^2%. Pet the
agreement with the IJ.S, Department of Health and Hurhan Services, the
Organization's final rate,for the year ended.June 30, 2020 was 10,80%. The.;actyal
rate for the'year ended June 30. 2021 was .approximately 11.37%, vrtiich is
ailoyyable because it Is less than the provisional rate.

Advertising policy

The drgahizatibri uses advertising to inform the .community about the programs it
offers and the;avai!ability of services. Advertising is expensed as incurred. The.Totai
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was-$28,130 and
$25,4.83, respeCtiyeiy..

Debt Issuance Costs

During the year end.e.d June 30; 2019, the Organization retrospectivefyadopted the.
prgviisibns of the FASB Accounting - Standards .Update (ASU) l^o. ■;201.5-03,-
''Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs." The ASU is limited .to
simplifying the presentation- of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and

. rne.asurement guidance f6r debt issuance costs is not affected by the ASU;
Amortization'.expense of $8,87; has been included with interest .expense in the:
consolidated statements of functlorial expenses for. both 2021 and 2020.

Revenue Recognition Policy
The Organization derives revenue primarily from grants, contracts, and
contributionsV Grants are re.cognized as revenue upon, receipt. Revenue frorri
■contracts iis recognized when the service has been perforimed. Contributions are
recognized as revenue when the donor makes a pledge to giye that is; In
substance, an unconditional promise. Contributions are recorded as with donor
restrictions or iwitho.ut donor restrictions.

New AccountindPronouncement
In fyt.ay 2014, FASB jssued ASU .2014-09 (Topic 606) - Revenue from Contracts
witti Customers. The ASU and all subsequently iissued clarifying ASU? replaced the
most existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP. The ASU also requires
expand.ed disclosures relating to the nature, amount, timing, .and uncertainty- of
revenue from cash flows arising from, contracts with customers. The Organization
adopted the new standard effective-July 1, 2020, the first day of the Organization's
fiscal .year using the modified retrospective approach, the adoption did r>,ot result in
a change to the-'accounling for any of the applicable revenue streams: 'as .such, no
cumulative effect adjustment.was recorded. See revenue recognition policy above.
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TRi-rfrinKiTy COMMliKIITV ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFUIATE

NbjES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

-Other Matters

The. impact of the hovel coronavirus (COViD-19) and measures to prevent its
spread continue :tp affect the Organization's business. The .significance, of the
irnpact of.-these disruptions. Including the'extent of .their adverse impact, on the
'Organization's fihancial operational results, will be dictated by the length of. "time
thal such disruptions continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable,
duratidn' of the COVID-i9 pandemic, and the Impact, of governmental regulations
that might be imposed In response to the pandemic:

I  " "

During, the ye.ars ended June. 30. 2021 and 2020. and through the; date, of this
reporti the Organization has hot experiehced a "significant decline i.n revenues, nor a
significant change.in its" operations,

NOTE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY
T^he- follovying .represents the Organization's financial assets as, of ̂ une.SQ. 2021
and 26'20:

2021 2020

Financial ;assets at year-end:
Gash .and,cash equivalents, undesignated $ '3.237,032 $ -2,257.081
Accounts receivable 1.6.17,249 1,3.22i852
Pledges receivable 216.'423 307,017

Total financiala'ssets 5.070.704 3;866,959
t

Lbss arti'ounts not avaiiable to be
used within "one year:
Net .assets with donor restrictions 483,385 5^,550
Less het assets with time restrictions to be .
met in less than a year (412.665) (410.P15)

\

Arriounts not available within.one year 70.720 196,535

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next tvyelve months t 4.99^.984 $ 3.700.415

It is ihe O'cganlzalion's goal to maintain financial :assets to meet 60 .days of
operating expenses \which approximates $3,569,006 and $2,860,000 at .June 30,
2021 and 2020', reispeclively.
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TRl.CdUKiTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES fO.QONSOLlbATEb FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
... FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

NQTE 3; ;CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash oh hand, funds on deposit with financial
institutions, and inveslmenls- wilh original rnaturilies of three months or less. At
year ehd and throughout the year, the Organization's cash bala'hces .were
deposited with multiple financial institutions. The balances are insured by the
.Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDjC) for each financial institution up to
-^250,000. Cash balances may exceed the Insured limits at times throughout the
year.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported
within-the slalertients ofTinancia! position that surn to. the total in: the statements .of
cash flows as of June 30:

2021 2020

Cash, operations .$ 3,237,032 $2,257,081
Restricted cash, current 1 ;317,839 796,937
Restiicted'cash, long term 439.622 384.711

Total cash and restricted cash $ 4.994.693 $ 3.438.729

Cash Restrictions

The Organization. Is required to maintain a deposit account with^a barik as part of
the loah security agreement disclosed at Note 7. It is required to maintain a
balance of $19,968 In the'.account, which is restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments o.f debt service or as approved by the U.S. Departmept of
Agriculture,

Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must be replenished with
monthly deposits: until the maximum required deposit balance is achieved.. The
balance as of June '30. :2021 and 2020 was $20,059 and. $20,040;.respectively:
The-Organization pas made a)! of their scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30, 2021 and 2020. These .amounts are included in restricted, cash on ihe
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

The Orgahizatibn is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part..of a bond, issue (see; bond payable in Note 7). The. required balance in the
account is .$173,817 arid is equal to 12 monthly paymenls. The balance as;of June
$6,'2021 and-2020.was $1.74.755 and $174,626, resp.eclivety, and the Organization
was; in compliance with thjs requlrernent. These amounts are induded in restricted
cash on the'^Cdnsolidated .Staterhents of Financial Position.

20



PROGRAM. ING. ANDAFPlLlATg
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020.

Th.e t^gan izatiqn maintains a deposit account ;on behalf of .clients wtig.padicipate in
the .Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the .account is- restricted for
use .'on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on .the financial
statements as other current liabilities. The total currerit (iabiyty .related, to this
restriction at June 30, 2021 and;2026 was $1,317,839 and $7&6.937.. respecti.vefy.
Tti.e.se amounts .are. includ.ed in other liabilities on the StaternenU of Financial
Position. Th'e total restricted cash within this account at June 30,. 2021 and 2020
was. $1,317,83.9 .and $796,937, respectively, and is included in the restricted cash
balance on the Statements of Financial Position.

Certain cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. are. restricted for
certain uses in the .Organization under rules and regulations preschb;c^ by. the
•.Department o.f Ho.usirig and Urban pevejppment. The total amourit. Te.stricted ail-
June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $245,008 and $190,045, respectively. See Note 15.

NOTE 4. INVENTORY

In, .2021 and 2020,. inventory Included weatherizatipn rnalerials which had been
purcha'sed iri biilk. These items are valued at the most recent' cost. A physical
Inventory is taken annually. Cost is'determined using the first-ih,; first-out (FIFQ)
method. Inventory at June 30, 2021 and 2020 consists of vyealherization materials',
totaling $52.985 and* $102,430, respectively.

NOTE 5. property

■i Prppe/ly consists of thefollo.wing a.lJune 30. 2021:

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value

Building
Equipment
Construction

in progress.
Land

$ 9.931,953
2,394,489

172,653
■418.840

$4,233,084 $ 5.698.869
1^617,101 777.388

:  172,653
:■ 418.840

S12.917.935 $5.85Q.18§ S 7 067-750
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NOTES to CONSbLIDATEb FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 36. 2021 AND 2020

Property consists of the following at June 30. 2020:

Capitalized Accunriulatecl Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value

Building
Equlprnent
Construction

In progress
Land

$ 9,810.288
2,105,950

4,727

423.840

$ 3,753.302
1.848,842

$ 6,056,986
257;3a8.

4,727

423.^0

-^12-3-4'4.805 £5.601i944

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which .are the prpperty of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
valuers immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the Organization's
property and equipment .totals.

Peprecialio.n experise for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 totaled
$449;153 and $435,31.0,. respectively.

The Organization had property held for sale at June 30, 2020 arnopnling to
■$47";00ib, wtjich was classified as a current asset in the accdnfipanying cor>5oIidated
statements of financial position at June 30, 2020. The total toss on ,th,e. write down
to' fair value oMhis property was $255,492 .iri 2020.

NOTE S. ACCRUED.EARNED TIME
For the years-.ending June 30, 2021 and 2020, employees of the Organization were
eligibi.e to accrue vacation for a maximum of 160 .hours. At June .3.0, 2Q21 and
i2d20, the. Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its
©mplpyees had earned' and vested in the amount of $233,907 and $243,779,
respectively.
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TRI.CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFiaAfE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30.-2021 AND 2020

NOTE 7, LONG TERM-DEBT
The": long term" debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2021 and. 2020 consisted of
the following:

2021 2020.

Nbte payable-with'the USOA requiring 360 monthly
."in'stairmehts of'$i.6'64-. Including Interest at 5% per
•annum. Secured by general business asse.tis. Final
insiallment due-January 2027. $ 96,062 $ 110,824

Note payable "with a bank requiring 120 monthly
insiallrhents of $2,936, including interest at 4% per
annum. Secured by first fridrtgages oh two
cbmnnercial properties. Final installment due April
.2'Q31. 285,268 307.719

Note payable, with a bank requiring 60 monthly
ins.tajlmerits of- $459. iriciuding interest at 5% per
annum. This note was an unsecured line of credit

that was converted to" a term loan during the year
ended June 30, 2016 and was paid off during the
year ended June 3d. 2021. - 4,478

Note payable to a firiancing company requiring 72
rnonlhly installmenlS' of $312, including interest at
5.49%' per annum. Secured by the Organizaliori's
vehicle. This, note was paid off during the year
erided June; 30.2021. - 4,228

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly Installments of $313, including interest at
5.54.% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. This note was paid off during the year
ended, June'3Q; 2021. - 3.948

Note payable to a firiancirig company requiring 60
monthly insilailmenls of $143, including interest at
5.99% p.ef: annum. .Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. This note was paid off during the year ended
June 30.2021. - 705
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2021 2020

Note payable to a financing company requiring 7'2
monthly installments oif $248. including intere^st at.
6,. 10% p.er. annum. Secured by the Organization's
yehicie. This , note was paid off during the year
ended, June 30, 2021;

Note payable with, a. bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of"$2.^ll including interest at 5;5'1%
per annum. S.ecured by second mortgage on
commercial property. .This note vvas paid off during
the year ended June 30. 2021.

Bond ,payable .with a bank requiring ■ monthly
insiallnients of ,$14,485, including interest of 2.75%
plus the bank's iriterrial cost of funds multiplied by
.67% .with an indicative rate of ,3.28%. Secured by
ifirst pommercial real estate mortgage on various
properties and assignments of rents at various
properties. Final installment due August 2040.

.Cornerslbne Housing North, Inc. capital advance'
due to the. U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. This capital advance is not subject to
.Interest or principal anibrtization and will be fgrgiyen
after 4p years, or in August 2047,.

Gornerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage payable
due tp New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority;
The mofigage is hot subject to Interest or principal
amortization. Payments are deferred for 40 years:
final payment due in August 2047.

Total Jong term debt before .unamprtized debt
Issuance costs

Uriamortized debt issuance costs

Total long term debt
Less cuixenl portion due within one year

7,294

387.227

2.467.774 2,547,308

1,617,600 1,617.600

250.000 .  250:"000

4,716,704 5,241,33.1

flO.0441 (10.931)

4,706,66.0 5,23.0,400

(129.155) .  (437:843)

S 4.577.505 $4792.557
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NOTES T.O CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

The scheduled maturities of Ipng-tierm debt as of June 30. 2021 vyere as fojiovys;

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2022 ■'$ 129.155
-2023 T34.452
2024 139.961
2025 145,697
2026 151,677

Thereafter 4.015.762

S 4 716.704

As deschtied .at Note 3, the Organization is required to maintain a reserve account
with.a bank for the first two notes payable listed above.

NOTE 8. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS
During the year ended June 30, 2016, the Organization leased a phone system and
cdpie'r under the terms of cap.ilal leases, which expired In November 2020 and
March 2021, :respectiv.ely. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Company
leased an additional c6p|er under the terms of a capital lease, which expired in May
2021. The assets and liabilities under the capital leases were recorded at.'lhe jpwer.
of the present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the assets.
The as^js are depreciated over their estimated lives'.

The. obligations included in capital leases at June 3.0. 2021 and 2020. consisted of
thefdliowing:

2021 2020
Lea.se payable, to a financing company vwlh
monthly installments of $208 for principal and
interest at 9.5% per annum. The lease v/as
secured by the phone system and matured in
November 2020. $ • $ 1,213

Leas.e payabl.e to a financing company with
monthly Instaltfhehts of $122 for principal and
iptiefest at 8.841% per annum. The lea^e was
secured by a copier and matured in March 2021.

•  944 •
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NOtES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL StATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30^2021 AND 2020

Lease payable, to a financing -company with
monthly installments of $12? for principal arid
Interest at 6.918% per annum. The lease was

.secured by a copier and'matured in May 202\

Less current portion

2021 2020

1.397

3.554
. (3.5541

i S

NOTE 9. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE.
The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit.with its primary financial
iristitution which is secured by real estate rhortgages and assignments of I.ea'ses
and tents bh various properties as disclosed in the line of credit agreerrient.
Borrowings under the line bear interest at 5.00% per annum. There was no balance
outstanding at June 30. 2021 and 2020. The line is subject to renewal each
January.

note To. operatinc leases
The Organization has entered into numerous lease cpinmitmerits for space and
office' equipment. Leases under non^^ncelable lease agfeemente have various
starting .dates, lengths,, and terms of payment and renewal. .Additionally, the
Organization has several facililles.which are leased on a m.pnth to month basis. For
the years fended June 30. 2021 and 2020, Ihe annual rent expense for leased
facilities and office equipment totaled $138,598 and $181,004, respectively.

9

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancetable bperating leases having
initial terms In excess of one year as of June 30. 2021. are asTpllows;

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2022 $ 127.467
2023 65,722
2024 43,884
2025 43;,8.84

•  2026 42,869
Thereafter 3.512.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMErUTS
f6^ THE VeARS.ENDEDJUNE 36. 2021 AND 2020 •

NOTE 11. IH'km C^NTRIBUtlONS
Th.e, Organizalion reco.rds the value, of in-kind cgnlribulions according to. the
accouhlirig policy described In Note 1. The Head Start, transportation arid elder
programs rely heavily on volunteers who' donate their services to the Organization.
These services are value.d based, uppn the co.rnparalive market wage for similar
paid positions.

The Crganization is-.also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind in lhe.forni of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and el^er prpgrarns.
The Value of the in-lond rent is recorded .at the difference betweeri the rental
payment and. the market rate for the. property bas.ed upon a recent appraisal.

Many oth'er individuals have donated significant amounts of tirhe to.the activities of
the Organization. The financial statements do not reflect any value for these
donated services since there is no reliable basis (of making a feasbhable
determination.

NOTE 12. CONCENTF^TION OF RISK
Trl-County Cprnrnunlty Actiori Program. Inc. receives a majority of its s.uppprt frorn
feddral and state governments. For the years ended June 30. 202-1 and 2020,
approximately $18,238,.690 (76%) and $14,380,020 {74%), respectively, of the
drgahiz&lioh's total revenue was received frorh federal arid stale' govefrimehts. if a
sigrilficant reduclion.ih the teVel of support were to. occur. It would have a significant
impact ori the .Organization's programs and activities^

•  • t

Gprnerstonie fjousing North. Inc. receives a large majority of its support from the
U.S. .Department of Housing and Urlpan Deyetppment. For the years eri.ded June

■30, 2021 and 202b, approximately .67% and 68%, respectively, of the
prganizatiori's total revenue was derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development. In the absence of additional revenue sources, the- future
existence of .Cornerstone Housing North, inc. is dependerit upon the funding
policies of Ihe U.S,. D.epartrnenl of Housing and Urban Development..

The majorlty-pf .Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s assets are apartment projects,
for which operations are concentrated in the elderly person's real estate .rnarket. jn
addition, the brganizalion operates in a regulated environment. The bpeiration of
the 'Organization is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of
federal^'state and local regulatory agencies, including, but no.t linuted to, HUD.
Such admiinistrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an
act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD. Such .changes
may occur with little notice of inadequate funding to pay for' the related cost,
Including the administrative burden, io comply with the change.
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NOTE 13. NET ASSETS WiTH'DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Net assets vvith donor reslriclions are available for the foIlovyjnQ specific program
services'as of JUne 30. 2021 and 2020;

2021 2020

Temporary Municipal Funding $ 216,423 •$ 307,017

FAI^ 17.4,056' .l6i2.998
Restricted BuHdjngs '• 39i9J3 65,713

Loans - HSGP 24,403 22i0i9
FAP/EAP' 16;33b 24i350

RSVP Program Funds 5,887 5;887

Head Start 5.856 -

RSVP - Matter to'Balance .500 500

10 Bricks Shelter Funds .1.7 -

D.QE 4.6,28.7

Donations to Maple Fund - 1.57f
Loans-HHARLF ...... 104

Coronayirus Response • .  . .94

Total net assets with donor restrictions ? -S9§.S5Q

NOTE 14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

xGrant Comoi/anice

Th:e Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants. :Uhder the
terms of the grants the Organization Is required to comply with various sfipulations
mclu.ding use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to- be
nbhconipliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Oigariizalibri'could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.

Envirdhmentaf Contingencies

On' March ;30. 200.9, the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to .secure
ownership of :a ti^-acre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire.- There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Win'g' Buildings. which
.yyere formerly used as a research and development facility for' the Berlin Mills
Company.
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The' .exterior soil 'and interior' pafis of the East Wing Building 'contained
'contarninants which required ertyironmental rerriediatjon. |n a letter .dated'May 2,
2012. th'fe Stat6 of New Hampshire Department of Environment Seryice's (the
Department) noled that the remedial, actions for the exterior soils and parts, of the.
East Wing Building had been completed to the Department's satisfaction.

In addition, .ttne Department noted that the contaminants related .to the West VVing
Building did not.pdse 'an-exppsure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided .the West Wing Building is maintained' to. prevent further
strucluraj deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contannilnahts' are
released into the environment, the Organization could be required to lake additional
actionjncluding cpntainmenl and remediation,-

Ldss'ConiinQencies
During the y.ear ended June 30, 2018 and subsequently, legal actiohs'were brought
against the Organization. Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of such cases, as
of June 30. 2021. as vyeH as the uncertainty of the Organization's .potential liability,
no arhoynt has been accrued by the Organization at this time.

NOTE 15. REPLACEMENT RESERVE AND'RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS
Under Cornerstone, Housing North, Inc.'s regulato.ry agreernent vwith HlJDi the
Orgahization is fequlred to set aside amounts into a replacement reserve for the
replacemehl .of. property and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-
reslricted deposits of $18i;723 and $155,278 were held in a segregated account at
June .30. 2021 and 2020, respectively. HUD-restricled deposits generally are. "not
iavdHatile for operating purposes.

Come'rstone Hbdsirig North, Iric.'s use of the .residual receipts account is contingent
upon' HUD'S prior written approval. Residual receipts .of $59,517 arid $.3l ,049 were
held in a ;segregated account for the years ended June 30, 2021 and ;2020.
respebtively.

HUD has ihitiate.d "policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts
upon renewal of the Organization's project rental assistance contract; The policies
■directjhat the amounts in excess of certain limits in the residual receipts account be
(a) used to offset rerit subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or.(b) rernitted
directly to HUD. The policies generally require project ovvners to limit the rnpnijw
-accum.uiated in the residuaj receipts account to $250 per unit.
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TRIinOUNTT COMMUHITV ̂ ^Tinhi program, inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATEO FINANCIAt STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

J'n .accordance with the policy .noted above, the Organization was required to remit
.funds to HUD totaling $31,412 during the year ended June 30, -2020. In .addition to
■the funds-remitted, HUD approved the Organization to withdraw $.11,852 from the
residual receipts.account for equipment during the year ended Jqne 30,2020.

NOTE 16. RECLASSIFICATION
.Certain, amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statemerits were
reclassined to enhance comparability with the Current year's financial statements.

MOTE 17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
:SubseqUent events, are .events or transactions that occur after Uie ;statenien,t of
financial, position .date,, but .before financial statements are available to be issued.
•Recogoized siibsOquertt events are events or transactions that provide a.ddilional
.evidence: about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position, date,
.including the estiniales Inhererlt in the process of preparing financial statements.
Non-recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence, about
.cgpditions that did npt exist at the sl.atement of fihanciai position date, but arose
bSer that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through No.vem.ber
19.2021, the. date.the financial staiem.ents were available to be issued.
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY AGTION PROGRAM. INC.

jrRAT>iAM ■ "

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

"^.ANAUdlf OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN jACCORDANCE'WITH GO\/ERNMeNr AUC>mNG STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
fn-Counjy Community j^ion Program, Inc.
Berlin. New Harhpshire

We have auclited. jn accord[ance with the auditing standards generally accepted In the .United States of
America and the S:ta'ndafds aRpjlcable. to financial audits contained' In .Government AuWlirig.Standards
issued by thd Cbrnptroller General of the Uriiled-Slates, the' fi.nancial statements of Tri:Cgunty
Comrnunily Action Program. Inc.. (a nonprofit organi2atibh),.which .cortiprise the statements of financial
position as of June 30". 2021 and 2020, and the related statements of activities, functionai expenses
and cash flows for the-years then ended, and the related notes lo'the financial statements.-and Have
issued our-report thereon dated Nd.vember 19, -2021.

Iriternal.Control Over Financial Reporting
■In planning .and, perfprrnjng-.our audit of the financial statements,-we considered Tri-Gounty Corhmunily
Action PrdgraiD lhc,''.5 .lhterhal. conlr.bj ove.r financial reporting (internal conlroj) to, determine.the audit
procedures'that are appropriate in tha drcumslarices for the purpose ,of expressing our opinion, on tl«
.'finandai staiernenls, but not for the purpose of expressing ah opinion on the .effectiveness, of Tri-Gounty
•Community Ad'.on' Vnc.le internal control.- Accordingly, we do not express an opinion oh the
.effdctiyerjess of fri.Cbunty, Qornrnunity Action Program lnc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operat'ipn of a control doe.5 not allow
management or .employees, in the normal course of perforrhing their assigned functions,, to prevent, or
detedt. jand correcL misstatements on a timely basis. A matenal weakness Is a deficiency', of a .
c'ofhbinatidn ofdefidencies, in intcrnajcontrol, such that there is a reasonable'possibility that a.material
mjsslatement of the-entity's financial .statements will not be prevented, or delected/arid corrected on a
ti.mely basi.S: A .significant deficienhy \s a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies. In internal control
that is less ^yere than a material weakness, yet Imporiant enough to merit attention by those charged
with gbvefhance.

Qur Mn^id.eration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in. the fi rst paragraph of this
section and was not .designed to identify -all deficierycies. in Internal control that might be fnaleria!
weakne'sses or significant .deficiencies. Given these limitations, durir^'O.ur audit we. did opt identify .any
deficiencies, in Internal cohtfol 'that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, .material
weaknesses-may exist (hat have not been Identified.
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Compliance and.Other Matters
.As part of'oWaihlng reasonable assurance about.whelher Tri-County Community Action.Pfogram Inc.'s"
financial, s.tatementij .are free :frdm material misslatement; we performed .tests of its compliance with
certain prbvisidhs of laws, •regulations, contracts, ar^ grant agreernents. noncpmpjiance. w(lh
could have a direct and material effect/on the deterrniriation of -finandal statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on cprnpliance with those provisions was not ah objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we' .do rib.t Oxpress 'such .art opinion. The 'resulls of oOr tests disclosed no 'ihstahces of
nonc,ompliance-.or-6ther matters that-are required to be reported under Govemmenl Audiling'.Stendards.

Purpo.se;pf th[s Report
The purpose .of' .this report is sojely to des.cnbe the scope of our .testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide ̂an opinion on the effectiveness of Ihe
organization's .ihtemal controt or.on compliance.. This report is an integral part of an' audit pe.rforn^d in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the crganizatioh's Internal cohtr.ol'df>d
'compljance.; ̂ .qrdingly. this communication is not suitable.for any other purpose.

November i9. 2021
North Conway, New Hampshire
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR-EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To .the Board of Directors of
Tri-Cdunty Community Actiori.Prograrh. Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

Report on 'Cofnpilan.ee for.Each.MaJor Federal Program
We have audited Tri-Couhty Cdmrhunity Action Program Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requiremenis described in the QMS Compliance Supplement that could have a :direct and niaterial
■effect, on each of Tri-Co.unty 'Community Action Program" Ihc.'s major federal programs for the year
ended June 30. '2021. 'Tn-Cbunty Community Action Program Inc.'s major "fe'defal programs are
.identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying .schedule of finding's, and
questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility
■Management ls< resporis'lble for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
.coriditiohs of it's-federal prograrns.

Auditors '■ Responsibility
O.iir responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for-each of Tn-Couniy Community'Action
Prdgfa'm lhc:'s major-federal .programs based oh our audit of the types of compliance mq'uirerhehts
referred to above. We: conducted our audit of compliarice .ln accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States.- of America; the standards- applicaUe to financial audits
contained in Goye'mme'nt Auditing Siendends, Issued-by the Comptroller General of the United-States;
and the laudit requirements .of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, .Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Pnnciples, and Audit Requirernerits-for Federal AYfArds (Uniform
Guidarice). Those standards arid Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform'th;e .audit, to
.obtain reasonable 'assurance, abo'ut whether nonco'mpliance'with the types of cornpliance mquir.ements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit indudes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Tri-County Community .Action Program Inc.'s
cpmpliarice: -with those 'requirements and performing such other procedures as we 'conside.red
necessary In the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for ea.ch rnajor
federal program. :Hpweyer.-pur audit'does not provide a legal deterrnination of Tri-C.6.unty Community-
Action Program Inc.'s compliiance. ,
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ORlnlqn on Each Major Federal Program
In pur opinion', Tfv.GoiJnty Community Action Program. Inc. compliecl. in all material respeds, with.lhe
type's of compliance re'quiremerils referred lb above that co'uld h'ave a direct and rhaterial effect^o'n each
of its major federarprograms for the year ended June 30. 2021.

fjteport on Internal Control over Compliance
Maridgerh'enl of Tri-.C.ourity .Community Action Program. Inc. is responsible for establishing .and
nrialntaihing-effective'ihtemar control ove'r com'pliaric'e with the types of compliance.-,requirenr!ents
referred .19-above: In planning and pertonming our audit* of compliance, we conslde'fed TrirCouhiy
Community Action Program Inc.'s internal'control over compliance" with the types of requirements that:
could "Have a dire;cl a'n'd material effect on each major federal "program to deterrnine the •audillr>g
procedures that* a're appropriate in the drcurhstahces for the purpose of expressing ah opinion' on
compliance for.each major-federal program and to lest and report on.intemal control .over coinpliaricc In
accordance with .Uniform Guidance, ibut not for the purpose of expressing .an opinlori oh- the
effectiveness of internal control :over .compliance. Accordingly, we do ndfcxpress an opihioh on .the
effectiveness of TrirCioun^.Corii.munily ̂ ion Program. Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A-dariciency in internal cohlrol pve'r compliance exists when the design or operation of a control dver
compjjanpe do.es npf allow, management or employees, in thfe normal course pf" derforming .their"
assigned Unctions, .to p.rever^t,. or detect and -correct, noncompJiarice with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program pn a timely basis. A material weakness in iniemal-contml -pyer
compliance is a deficiency, .or combination of deficiencies, in .iriterhar.contfol over bompnance. such that
there is a reasonable possi.bility that material nonccmpliance with.a type of compliarice-'requirement of a
•fedieral prqgrarn .yviil not, be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 'A .significanl
deficiency in internal-.control pyer compiiance is ,a deficiency, or a. comblnatlbn .of deficienjcies.- ,in
iriterhal control o.ver compliance with a type of cbrhpljance requiremisnt bf-a federal prqgrarn'thai is le.ss
severe than-a material weakness in internal control over cdrripliance, yet importa'rit enough'to' merit
•atlenliqn. by those charged vyithigovernance. ** ..

Our c'ohsiderBtibri of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose .descri.bed in the .first,
.paragraph of- this section arid was not. designed to identify all deftciencies in internal control.pver
compiiance. that rnight be material weaknesses or significant -dericiendes. We did riot identify any
.deficiencies' in interria.l control over compliance that we consider to bp material weaknesses. Hovvever,
.material weaknesses may-exist' that.h'av'e hot been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is .solely to describe the scope, of our
testing of internal cpntrbl over compliance and the re.sults of that, testing based on the requirements of-
the Uniform Guidari'ce. Accordingly, this report, is nol suitable for any other purpose.

• November 19; 2021
North Corivvay, New Hariipshire
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' Tftl-CQUNTY COMMtJNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021

1. The auditors' -reporl expresses an. unmodified opinipn on the financial, statements of Trh'County
' 'C.pmmunll'y Actlon Programi Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the
independent Auditors'Report on Internal Control over Financial Repprtjng apd on Cprnpliance
and 'other Matters Based on an Aud// of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

3 No instances of noncpmpliance material to the financial statements of Tri-C.ounty Community
' Action Program. Inc. -which would be required to be reported in accordance .with Government

Auditihg.Standardi. were disclosed" during the audit.

4 No'significant deficieficies in internarcontrbl over major federal.awar.d programs during the audit,
are" reported in the"/ndependenl Auditors'-Report on Compliance for Each Major Prdgrem- and
on Interhal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance.

5. The' auditors' report on .compliance for the major federal award progrp'ms for Tri-.C.ou.niy
Communily Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinipn on all major programs.

6. No audit findings that are reguired to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) are
reported in this Schedule.

7. The'prog'rarris tested as rriajor programs included:

tJ.S. 'Dept. of Health & Human Services, LIHEAP - ALN 93.568

U.S. Dept. .or'the Tr.easufy, Coronavirus Relief. Fund - ALN 21..019;

U.S. Dept. of the'TreasUry. ERAP - ALN 21.023

U.S. Dept. of Housing and Urban Development, CoC - ALN 14.267

New Hampshire Public Utilities Company. Electrical Assistance Program (non-Federal)

8. The threshold for distihgui^ing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Tfi-Cbunty Community Actidn.Program, Inc. was determined to be a low-rlsK auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDII^IG'S and questioned costs - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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TRI-COUNTY
COMMUNITY ACTION
'S«rv!n9 Cc^s, Carro.ll.& Grafton Counties since'19$5

Board of Directors

FY2023

Coos County Carroll County Grafton County

Board Chair

Sandy Albhzo

Business

Brian HofTman

Business

Charles Monaghan

Business

Linda Massimilla

Elected Official

Ruth Heintz

Business Attorney

Fay Pierce

Low Income

Richard Mclepd,

Low Income

Treasurer

George Sykes

Elected Official



Tri-Couoty Commupit>' Actioo. Program, Idc.

Key Persorinel

Name Job Title Salair

Jeanjie Robillaxd CEO SI 32,000

Ran'dairPildKe CFO $90,000

Brcnda Oacne Interim CPO $65,000

' Josh PoisMo Program Director $50:000



Jeanne L. BBipbillard

rOHE gTHEWCTCTS

Pfogtw dey.clopmcni, mafttgencntand •dmini$cr*tion ♦ Community coUabonc^ni
Dev^opm^t of^p.olicy, protocol, and s^icc ddrvecy to ineet funder mnc^uc^

.Gnnt vridng.ondmanagemwt. ♦ Budget pcxformince and fmaridJ repotting
Innovatiye adhitidni & problem aolving * Capacity building'

Profotioful preitnntions « Publicspealcing
Dedicidon ♦ Imiginition • Det'eftninarion • Fottifudc

•B»BOyfli:SSIOWAJL EXPEHflEJVCE

Tri^6iint7 immunity AeUon Progrom^ Inc:.
Oiief Czecalav« Officer

BcrliD. NH. '2016 * etirr^ni FTemptotfnwni

TH*Coaoty CoxmnanHy Action Progromr* lac.
Cbiel.Operatlng OHicer

3016*2018 • •

Rcippniiblc for, the op^dpns of lix agency Divisiona with 15 iruLvidusd programs that provide over
60 consuimer accvicea across.tKree coond'cs of Northcm'New H^psh^e. Essencia! duoes.ihdude;
supervision of Division Directors, oversee and monitor program resources, revenues, expenditures
and b.udgct pcrfdir^nce; tactical oversight of programs to n^et or exceed agency dcfined.sirateg^c
goals; de^op-aod implement strategies to improve imiividuai programs and overall ̂ ncy program
and fiscal performance; oversee and lead special projects such as the Annual Kepbrt, Strat^c Plan,
iComrnudity Needs* Assessment pfO<c«, a^. ivo.rk with Senior Management Team.to develop'new
iCTvice initiadvcs. Provide tactical guidance to Division Directors to trouble shoot issucs.and problerps
in the daily opmdphs of prog^f

MfCooaityCommimiiy A^od Prpgrotiui*.lnc.-
Dfvferiefl.Dxr«ciort TCCAP PrevcfttioD Services

Pertixi,lVH 3015-3016
Responsible for four agency programs under the umbceUa of TCCAP PtcvcntioQ Services; oversee
division resburccs, revenues, arid expenditures and.monitor budget performance; gcoe^ oversight of
programs to meci.or.cxcced agency defined strategic goals; supeiNrise program dircrtdrs; umtc grants
to supppn programs, monitor results, and prepacc,grant reports and financial statements for.fiinders
and ageDcy; develop fundraising.and marketing strategies for progr^s; present program throu^
parddpation in state and local initiauvcs relative to program/division goals and sciyicc ddiyery,
cdUaboratc wiih stajtefaolders .add elected offidab, including presenting legislative testimony.

■TH-CeoDtjr Commonily Action Pro{^aiii«, Inc.
py«^iun-/piV{iiioD.Dtredlon d»appori CeaCcr oS Bardi Boom
KJUleloo, New BampchlM 3007- SOU
C^ersee daily opcraobn and mpcxvision of domestic lod sexual violence cdsis center and residential
shelter, wore grants to supjrort programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reporo and fuia.ncial
sut^ents. for funders and parent agency; oversee program resources, revenues and cxpetidnufes, and
monitor budget paformancc and progress toward .strategic goals; crate and direct victim advocacy

•programs to ensure compliance with grant deliverables arid applicable state and federal Jatv, devdop
fondraising and marketing stratcgic5;^participate in state and local coilaboradoas to enhance victim,
services; represent prograrn in aiatc-and fcdctal Nrictim service iaitiaiives. including presentation of
legislative testimony; create and ptesent iraioings for medical and l^al professionals on lej^ s^daids
atid best practices Ibr.Victim services.



JLRobiilard * 2
Wom^> Rural Eo^reprcnearlol iVetvrork <%V|iEK»

BatUebem. (VH caireni.lT'eBploTmcfll
Rc»pOfl*ible for granr 6scq] mckiog, teporofl^ fuxxii release end account transfers; biiwcddy paytoU
tnrf'941 payments, accounts pa^b|c anci receivable, mbothcrid recbnaliations for .bank accounts,
credit cards, petty cash, retail and market sales; monthly POS/QB tcconciliatron for three retail
locations, preparing monthly cash Bow,, forecasts,.and standard fiscal reports for Board of pirectors.

'lVi4?.oiuil7 Cpnunimiij AcSiois Prt^on^ Inc.
.Dijrec.t S^CTfciefl/Vjblanlc«» .CoordlnAlbr: Sopport CcnS4rr oi Borch Boom
Lllilciibti.-.fVew' llainpahu^ 1007. 3007
Provide advocacy and direct service to victims of domestic aod sexual violence; supervise court
advocacy programs; rccrujt, crain and supcrvise staFf, volunteers; amJ.interos; develop agency systems;
-polide.s and protocols; create and pte^t community outreach presenrtdons and campaigns; present
schbol'baied dolence prevention classes for grades K*12; provide on*caU covenge of cdsis line

-Direrlori HaverhiJU 'A>en Jovcnile Diversion Pro^ona
IVoOdsviOe, New Dompehxre I080-3001
Recnui, train,.and.supervise vohinteer diversion committees; esublish comrnunity programming for
diverted youth; supj^rtiye counseling o/.youth; maintain coUabora.rive rdadonships between the court
system,.juveruJe-.scrvice officers, local police dcpanmerirs. and diversion program; prepare and file
court reports on^cUvcrted youth; community outreach and education

CoooMlbr/Tillc i Teacbcr: .NoHbem Fttiuify InatisoMcflerMo Shelter
Jetteraen, New HompsUre I00&I.OO9
Provide ihdividuaJ supportive counseling to-adjudicated youth, fadliute peer support groups, develop
and tmplcmcht.txcatmcnt plans and case management services to.clients, supervise and tutor youth b
classrocim setting, supervise youth in daily living skills ' ;

Edacalion

BS ̂  Unmnn Servicce, Spruigficid CoUege Sdtool off Bnman .Boston. MA^
Gtiroimal Jusdcc CoQccnciradon, - —

AS lo-Dro^ and Afcobol Rehobiliiatioii CoaaaeUa^ ffDABC Progroai)
Sootbem CoonccSieol Cotonoolly College; New Bovm, CT

•' •■ ■ ■ I

AdJilinnal Pf-ateiMionot ILcoJonihip nnil
♦ Chairman, BctWchemBoudofSclcctincn. Town ofBcihlebcm Twee Peeved ■2d06'20)0
♦ Chaicman, Am ^.ance of Northern New Hampshire 7000-20Ci.Tnawnr
t Chaiiman,-HavechiU Area Faini^ Violence Council 1998'2pOJ
^ Certified PRIME FOR CIFE Impaired Driver Inrcrvcndon Ihogram 'lnju\icror-#NH16i99
♦ .R^'stered Seaual Ham'iment Prevcotion Trainer in ihe Stale of Nw Hampshire
f Board-Member. WorDea'.s.RutilEntreptcneodoI Network UtimdMslMmkr'2C0.9'2017
♦ Bethlehem Pbnning Board 2010'701S

BctKl.chcm Conserva^n Commission 2006'- tvmn!
♦ G^fute United Way, North Country Cabinet Member 2011-2012
♦ TCGAP;-.Commendadon= Division Director Awardi."20/1
♦ ^Bethlehem Cid.ico'i Adyispry Committee on Recycling 2007-2010
♦ Ucenscd Foiter Pweni,.State of NH 2000-2006

Small Business Owner : Aucoca Encigics 20lS-.turml
Spcakeasy.TrioJaiz'Vocalisf/Swcetjamm Swing Band JizaVocalisi 1997-{vrmt

♦ Me'mbec, United Sot« Figure Skadng Assodarionyinternadonal'Skadng Insdtuie tumal turn 199)



R A 'N D A L L S . P I L- 6 T T E

Summary'

Accounting profeaiionai with bw 29 years.bf experience, of which 21 years were with a single priyalc mmufacluw.
16.ycart.ofexpcricncemanagjngacco«ntirigprpfcssionaJs. Key comp«epci«inchirie:

FtJianclel Staterncpls Accounts Poyebks Inventory Fixed Assets
Payroll Bank.ReconcUiatioBi Accounts Receivables SalesAJse Tm
Budgetips. Cash Flow Management .Audits Forecasting

Experience

TRI^UNTY COMMUhmV ACTION PROGRAM tNC.. BcrUn,NH 06/2013-Prcscot

CFO(20:i 7-Present)
Work closely with the CEO, Trtasorerarid Firianoc Conyriittcc.to identify pqformance goab for the Agency and to
ihaintain'systOTi to monitorpcifonDaaceagainst ihoscgoals. Plan, direct, coordinate, implement and e.yaluate the
nnartcid mcMgcriieni aystems and activities of the A^n cy with,a budget of S 1,8 M.
•  Prc'pari^rbvides compiete and accurate rmacci^,"statistical, and accounting recoids for the Agency and outside

regulatbrya^ricies.,
•  As a inember of the senior mariagemcnt team, assists in the formulation and execution of corporate fbohce-

policies, objectives and pfogrnrna
•• Prepares program land agency budgets in conjunction with the CEO and Progr^ Duectors., ?lpn, .direct,

cobrdinaie, Lmplen^ and eyatotc ftscal performance reviews ofTfi-Cou'nty CAPs divisions.
• Hire, train, direct and evaluate cm^oyeepcrfonnance within the depnjtmeni; recommeDd promotions .and saltUY

adjustmeiils.
•  Provides.supciyisitffl and direction for the Facilities Management Team, ensuring that ell ihortgage^ leases, and

coverianis, are,mairtairkd for Tri-Coifltty CAP'S facilities.-Crealiori of five-year.cq)iial plan.
•  Reviews cash flows for each divisioo, monitor cash maaagecoeDl practices, and monitor in v estments aasoc ialed

with each prbperfy.
•  Prepared flve^yeardebtreductionpiaD..

Fiscal Director/Jjiterim CFO l(20l 6 - 2017)

• Direct arid maha^ afriscal staff of'5. and prpce«es associated with the getjeral ledger, payroll, and acco.urils
payable, accounts receivable, ca^.receipts aod fixed assets.

•  Prepare arid supe^se iheprodactico offinancial statemcnls iocludmg Balance Sheet, Revenue and Expense
Reports; and Cost Sununaritton a monthly aod annual basis.

• Maintain pfc'per.acCbunimg controls on grants and conmbutions to ensure accurate revmue rcporiing and er^^e
tracking to support periodic monitoring's by funderc and auditors.

•  Ensure all balance sheet,-revchuc and expense accounts are analyzed and recoociled periodicaUy.
• Collaborate wlA Division Directors to monitor d^aroncnial revalue and expenses versus budget
• Worked wilh the CFO to develop real time moolhJy and annual financial reporting; and implementing

deparbiierinil goals.
•  Prepare.audit schedules for extemal auditors.
• Collaborate with cxtem.Bl auditors in completing annual audit in a timely manner.

Accounting Moo&ger(2015*2016)

Sr. Accountant (2013-2014)
RANDALL PILOTTE RESUME:



KJE^^ NUTRilTON'GROUP. INC fClc/a Blue Sol Feeds. Inc.). Londonderry. 03/1989^/2010

AisisUot CpDUoQer i[20OS-2plO)

■  Eosund an 'accurate and timely mp'nthly and year end close, consistijis of the preparaijop of-'a consolidated and
individii^ financial statement in accontince with OA APfornlnemanufacTuringplants and 11 retail stores with

gross revenues in.excess.of S20.0M. Additiobal respoosibilities.included pr^ariog Journal enthes, accbubi
analysis..invenldry review and obKrvatkra. fiXed assets, and depreciatloo.

• Managed, trained, and supervispd astaW accountant respooable for ensuhng accurate Journal entries. Inventory
lecpncUiation, tonnage taxretum.s, bank'reccndliacions, and assigrunest of special prefects.

• Overaaw all aspects ofproinietaiy'sofHvarc^ rbulti-etate psyroUsystmfor iOOeR^loyees. Prepared all federal-
add state'peytol) laarejxuU.'mdudidigqutiteirly add year'-eod remnxs,proc'euing of W2s,'and 'sup;ervisidn of
payroll cleA. . ♦ .

•  'idteifac'cd with i S.vahdu's bankstbrougbout.New Eoglandand Mid-Atlabtic area used as depp^tpriea.
•  Prcparcdmulti^tesalesAtsetaxrehimsandactedaspoiniofconiactforeu'dits.
•  .E^rc^actiyely coacbedan'dcoi^tedplaAtandstoire management on the annual budget devek^eptprooesi
•. .Oversaw, montb-endacciuals.

•  y^isted and responded to auditors* requests on armua) audit.
• Filed annual fiaixluseand'abandon'edpropeity reports with appropriate st^cs.

Accouoting Maoo^r (1999-2 005)

Suppdit^lbe CorpcnteConln)llcf!s initiatives by providingsup^sion and ovmigbc.io the AccouDtidg function.
Supervised and trained two acoo'unls payable clerks on Chart'of Accounts, Accounts Payable, .timely a'nd acciifafe
processing and paymcDt of .vendor's invoices, employee truvel reimbursements, and standardaccouotmgpmctices.

Acc.oantant/Payrpll SuperYlsor (199iH 999)

AccouDtaiit (1989-19W)

NORTHERN TBLECOM. INC:. Cancotd. 65/I987-03/198.9

Assdclata.RttuHa AtTOtmtabt (i<ra^l989)

Accoiina Payable (19.87-1988)

Education

•Bach'elor-of Selene^ Acdouniing, Franklin Peerce Co U£CE. Concprd.NH



Brende Gagne
Depaiimcnt Head, Economic Supports

Tnter^ CPO
Tri Gounty Comraonlty AcHoo Program Inc.

Frpfe^ipnai.Summaiy;.

Successful oversighi.of the day lodaya^cts andopcralions .ortri Couniy CAP'STransjt, Guanlidnship end
Energy Awtstance ProgTams.

Experience:

Tri Coun^ Community Action Programi lnc.
6/30/2020 -Present

Depart men! Head, Econ'omic Supports
^5/2022 IntcrimC-PO

Tri County CAP, Inc.
Tri County Transit
31 Pleasant St-

Berlin.ryH 03570
.5/20"l 7-6/30/2020

Director of fransportaiion

RcspDnsibilitie.s biclude;
QyersMipg theopcration> and adrninistrative functions of a social service transporlaiion program serving Coos,
NoTibCTn Ghftbh and Carrbll Ccunlies.

fri-Courity CAP, Inc.
TriCouniy Transit
31.Pleasant Sl
BerUn NH 03570

7/2004-5/2017

Operations Manager"

Responsibilities include;
'Running the daijy operations.of a public' iransit-and para iransii service.
• 'Facility Management.
'■Gafhcnng statistics
•Quajicify.reporting to hfHD'OTand BEAS.



•preparing quarterly jnvoiccs=tq B.E^Sand NHDOt
•Weekly employee s^eduling, staff rnariagemcnt.
•Creating procedure manuals
•Grant; writing
•Bu'dget.preparation.
•Writing Warrant Articles
•Dhjg & Alcohol Testing
•Emergency Preparedness

Mountain Village Construction
P.O. Box 96
Milan,-N.H. 03588
5/199'S - 1/2004

Accounts Manager/Office Manager

Responsibilities included;
•Customer service.

•A'ccouhlihg using'Quick Books .Pro.
•Preparing payroll and Tax Payironts.
•Preparing Customer Statcm^ts and Invoices.
•Accounts Receivable and AccounisPayablc.
•Creating and running Profit and. Loss Reports.
•DataEntiy.
•Phone communications and general secretarial .duties.

MUan Parks aod Recyeation D^it.
P.O. .B0X 360 *=
MUaii, N.H.} 03588
'6/1997-3/2002

Parks and Recreation Director

Respoosibilities included-

•Directed and implemented'sp.qris and recreational programs for youth and adults for the
towns cf Milan, W^t Milan, and Dummcr.

^DcvclopmCrit of new programs and year round activities.
•Producing yearly budgets.
•Equlprnent and materials' puithasin'g.
•Organizing and nipervising a large Volunteer staff.
•Working with the public to create new programs.
•Cpordinaling with the Milan Viliagc S.cho.pl on athletic arid after school programs.
•Applying for federal ahd Stale Grams.



Education:.

Graduate Codiom HighSchool
Corham.NH

Granite State College
Emergency.Mwagemcni

Souchem New Hampshirt, University
Bachelor of Business Admihistration

NHbOT Courses.
Fundamentals oTSuccessful Project.Management, MTAP/RTAP Financial Management Course
Basics of Fadliiies Management Seminar (Facility Maintenance Plan), Transit Security Workshop
FTA bnig & AfcohoLWorksh.pp, Emergency-Planning and Disaster Management,. NH Conference.on Statewide
Emergency Prcpat^n«s,!Procureradrit for Small.ahd Medium Transit Systems..

Ccriificd Training and Safety.Rcyievycr
Community Transportatioh Assdcialidh of America
June 200?

CertLfied.Safcty and Security pfficCT
Communiiy TrwsportatioQ Association of America
10/20)0

Tri State Transit CorifercQcc

9/2007, 10/2OO8, 1.0/2.010,9/2011, 9/2013, 9/2014,9/2016,9/2017

Grant Writing Wortcshop
New. Hampshire .'Community Technical College
Berlin NH r6/2'd65



EXPERIENCE

JOSHUA POISSON

PROGRAM DIREaOR

ENERGY ASSISTANCE SERVICES

KEY SKILLS

MS Office Suite proficient*-Ability to
wbfk'ColldboratiVelv •Problem

solving •-leade'rship'skilis • Excellent

orgdnlzational skills Meticulous
attention to:detdil • Approachable-

and relatable -* Strong interpersonal

& communication skills

- ">v

ACtlVltlES AND INtE'RESTS

Farhily • Travel •'Fishing • Hiking

REfERENCES

Available upon request

PROGRAM DiRECTOR • WERGY ASSiSTANa SERVICES. TCCAP, INC
MAY.2bh-PRESENt |
Directly responsible for.the supervision andJoperation-qf;.all
personnel, programs,-and projects'under Fuel & Energy Assistance.
Manage fiscal operations including budget development and
.authoritation of expenditures while following all guidelines and \

.procedures given by. the Federal Government.

ACCOUNTING TECHNIQAN & BUDG^ ANALYST, tCCAPl lNC
NOV,2015-MAY 2021 |
Responsible for reviewing and processing all accounts payable
invoices submitted from the organiiation's|progfams: Process'
check runs on a weekly basis. Reviewthe c6rripan/s cash receipts

daily. Monthly reconciliations of vendor accouhts. Yearly tasics
include 1099 tax form creation and asslsting.with budget process.'

BOOKKEEPER TRANSFT DIVISION, TCCAP.INc!
MAR 201S • NOV ,20,15 j
Responsible-for daily processing of invoices, counting of bus fare.
collection boxes, and preparation'and deposltlng,of funds.
Reconcile vendor accounts for accuracy, assist -vyith divisibn'b;udget
creation, and monthly reconciliation of bank accounts.

EDUCATION j
NH COMMUNITY TECHNICAL COLLEGE; 8ERUN NH.
1998 I COMPUTER TECHNOLOGY |
PLY.MOLfTH STATE UNIVERSfTY, PLYMOUTH.NH

1997 I TEACHER - PHYSICAL EOUCATION

BERLIN HIGH SCHOOL, BERUNNH j
1993 - 1997 I G ENE RAL EDUCATION I

CIVIC AFFILIATIONS j
2019-2021 Board Treasurer North Woods Learning Center

•2021 - Present Board of Directors for Neighbor Helping "Neighbor
I


